14618 Broadway Street o P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, CA 92230

BOARD MEETING PACKET

September 16, 2025

FAC Meeting at 5:00 pm
Regular Meeting at 6:00 pm

Page 1 of 98



Cabazon Water District | 1
September 16, 2025 FAC Meeting Agenda

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street « P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

AGENDA
Meeting Location:
14618 Broadway St.
Cabazon, CA 92230

Teleconference:
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188

Meeting Date:
Tuesday, September 16, 2025 - 5:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER,
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,
ROLL CALL
FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
1. Discussion Finance & Audit Committee Report
¢ Balance Sheet
e Profit and Loss Budget Comparison
e Capital Detail
2. Discussion: Miscellaneous District Financial Matters

3. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing
PUBLIC COMMENT

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on specific agenda items, please
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be
notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d))

ADJOURNMENT

ADA Compliance Issues
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to
participate in a Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to
meeting time will assist staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

Page 2 of 98



September 16, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Agenda | 1

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street » P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

Meeting Location:
14618 Broadway St.
Cabazon, CA 92230

Teleconference:
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188

Email: info@cabazonwater.org

Meeting Date:
Tuesday, September 16, 2025 - 6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN
ROLL CALL
CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items. If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and
will be considered separately.
1. Approval of:
a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants of August 19, 2025
b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of August 19, 2025
2. Warrants — None
3. Awards of Contracts — None

NEW BUSINESS

1. Discussion/Action: Rate Study Report by Water Economics Resources

[TAB 1]

2. Discussion/Action: Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) 5-Year Periodic Update
[TAB 2] for the Groundwater Sustainability Agency

OLD BUSINESS

1. Discussion/Updates:  Discussion/Updates with SGPWA Director(s) regarding various matters

Page 1 of 2
Page 3 of 98



September 16, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Agenda | 2

2. Discussion/Action: Community Involvement
UPDATES
1. Update: CWD Operations Report
[TAB 3] (by GM Pollack)
PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to
three (3) minutes. Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec.
53232.3(d))

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND COMMENTS
1. Future Agenda Items
The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an
individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to
place the matter on a future Board meeting.
o Suggested agenda items from the Public.
o Suggested agenda items from Management.
o Suggested agenda items from Board Members.

2. Management Comments
Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board
and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
be discussed. (3 minutes)

3. Board Member Comments
Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the
Board and public. (3 minutes)

MISCELLANEOUS
1. Future Board Items/Next Board Meeting Date(s)

a.09/24/2025 (Wednesday) at 5:00 PM: San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Committee Meeting
b.10/06/2025 (Monday) at 1:30 PM: San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Meeting

¢.10/07/2025 (Tuesday) at 2:00 PM: Cabazon EIFD Meeting at Board Chambers in Riverside
d.10/09/2025 (Thursday) at 6:00 PM: West Desert MAC Meeting at the Community Center

e.10/20/2025 (Monday) at 6:00 PM: San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Meeting

f. 10/21/2025 (Tuesday) at 5:00 PM: Finance & Audit Committee Meeting

g.10/21/2025 (Tuesday) at 6:00 PM: Regular Board Meeting

h.TBD: Personnel Committee Meeting

ADJOURNMENT

ADA Compliance Issues
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to participate in a
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist staff
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide access.

Page 2 of 2

Page 4 of 98



Cabazon Water District
Statement of Net Position

(Preliminary and Unaudited)
As of August 31, 2025

ASSETS

Current Assets
Checking/Savings
Investments - LAIF and CLASS
Total Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable
Bank of New York Trustee Accounts
Prepaid Expenses
Inventory

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Total Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Net Fixed Assets
Other Assets
Lease Receivable-Cell Towers
Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES, DIR and FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Government - SGPWA
Customer Deposits
Deferred Revenue - Tower Lease
Current Portion DWR Loan
Current RCAC (Well 4) Loan
Current Portion 2022 Ford
Accrued Expenses
Total Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
DWR Loan Payable
Ford Loan Payable
RCAC Loan Payable
Total Long Term Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Deferred Inflow of Resources (DIR)
Deferred Lease Inflows
Total Deferred Inflows
Total Fund Balance
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DIR and FUND BALANCE

August 2025

342,114
2,196,423

2,538,536
618,922
61,962
50,432
86,796

3,356,649

17,522,227
(7,973,510)

9,548,717

907,891

907,891

13,813,257

36,169
292,664
7,000
47,183
13,947

66,938

463,901

15,524

133,464

148,988

612,889

833,081

833,081
12,367,286

13,813,257

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows.
Substantially all disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States Ralg@l&(bf 98



Cabazon Water District
Budget to Actual
(Preliminary and Unaudited)
For Period Ending August 31, 2025

A B C D=B/C
August 2025 Current YTD Budget FY 25/26 YTD 16.7%

1 REVENUES

2 OPERATING REVENUES

3 Base Rate - Water Bills $ 52,850 $ 101,698 §$ 615,100 17%
4 Commodity Sales 106,085 198,642 909,200 22%
5 Fire Sales - Water Bills 1,434 2,298 9,400 24%
6 Fees and Charges 5,775 10,135 67,100 15%
7 Basic Facilities Fee 36,460 63,618 90,760 70%
8 Stand By Fees - Tax Revenue - - 124,200 0%
9 TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 202,604 376,391 1,815,760 21%
10 NON-OPERATING REVENUES

11 Property Taxes 5,520 5,640 128,800 4%
12 Cell Tower Lease Income 2,892 5,783 39,800 15%
13 Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income 28 38,058 - N/A
14 Main St Yard Sale - - - N/A
15 Interest Income - Investment Accounts 8,019 16,208 67,600 24%
16 Interest Income - Water Bills 779 1,325 8,300 16%
17 TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES 17,238 67,014 244,500 27%
18 TOTAL REVENUES 219,842 443,405 2,060,260 22%
19 EXPENSES
20 PAYROLL
21 Directors Fees 900 2,900 20,000 15%
22 Management and Customer Service 18,663 46,239 263,300 18%
23 Field Workers 18,430 46,780 250,300 19%
24 Employee Benefits Expense 16,702 35,243 209,000 17%
25 Payroll Taxes 2,896 8,216 46,300 18%
26 TOTAL PAYROLL 57,590 139,378 788,900 18%
27 OPERATING EXPENSES
28 Facilities, Wells, Transmission and Distribution
29 Lab Fees 221 461 13,000 4%
30 Meter Testing and Repair - - 1,000 0%
31 Utilities - Wells 18,481 28,085 225,000 12%
32 Line Repair and Maintenance Materials 2,641 9,385 45,000 21%
33 Well Maintenance 2,791 4,461 34,000 13%
34 Security 1,196 1,716 18,700 9%
35 Engineering Services 241 241 15,000 2%
36 Facilities, Wells, Transmission and Distribution - Other 10,406 11,784 25,000 47%
37 Total Facilities, Wells, Transmission and Distribution 35,978 56,132 376,700 15%
38 Office Expenses
39 Utilities - Office 3,577 7,347 36,500 20%
40 Water Billing System - - 13,400 0%
41 Supplies and Equipment 5,185 5,639 9,400 60%
42 Copier and Supplies 256 513 4,900 10%
43 Dues and Subscriptions 115 130 2,000 6%
44 Postage 2,004 2,004 11,800 17%
45 Printing and Publications - - 500 0%
46 Computer Services 3,011 6,031 25,800 23%
47 Air Conditioning Servicing 455 455 5,500 8%
48 Office Expenses - Other 612 612 900 68%
49 Total Office Expenses 15,216 22,730 110,700 21%
50 Support Services

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially all
disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included. Page 6 Of 98



51
52
53

54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71

72
73
74

75
76
77
78
79
80

Financial Audit
Accounting
Legal Services

Payroll/Bank Service Charge
Website Support
Insurance
Total Support Services
Training/Travel
Other Fees/State Water Resource Control Board
Service Tools and Equipment
Shop Supplies and Small Tools
Vehicle Fuel
Employee Uniforms
Safety
Tractor Expenses/ Maintenance
Equipment Rental
Service Trucks - Repair and Maintenance
Water Operations On-Call Phones
Total Service Tools and Equipment
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

Loan Interest and Processing Fee
Bad Debt Expense

Miscellaneous
TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
TOTAL EXPENSES
NET INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL and DEBT SERVICE
Capital Projects - District Funded
Capital Projects - Debt Funded
Debt Service - Principal
NET INCOME / (LOSS)

Cabazon Water District
Budget to Actual
(Preliminary and Unaudited)

For Period Ending August 31, 2025

A B C D=B/C

August 2025 Current YTD Budget FY 25/26 ' YTD 16.7%
5,530 5,530 15,600 35%
- - 55,400 0%
- - 15,000 0%
305 632 7,900 8%
75 150 1,100 14%
- - 54,300 0%
5,910 6,312 149,300 4%
20 20 4,000 0%
- 672 11,300 6%
N/A
357 1,455 9,000 16%
1,512 1,518 12,500 12%
296 296 2,000 15%
142 142 2,000 7%
- - 4,000 0%
- - 4,000 0%
1,185 2,693 12,000 22%
293 293 4,500 7%
3,786 6,398 50,000 13%
118,500 231,643 1,490,900 16%
638 639 11,400 6%
- - 1,400 0%
209 3) 1,500 0%
847 635 14,300 4%
119,347 232,278 1,505,200 15%
100,495 211,127 555,060 38%
(4,940) (4,940) (290,300) 2%
(7,868) (7,868) (461,500) 2%
(1,113) (1,113) (77,700) 1%
86,574 197,206 (274,440) -72%

*No assurance provided on these financial statements. These financial statements do not include a statement of cash flows. Substantially all
disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States not included.

Page 7 of 98



Cabazon Water District
Capital Detail
(Preliminary and Unaudited)
For Period Ending August 31, 2025

A B C D=B/C
August 2025  Current FY 25/26  YTD 16.7%
CAPITAL PROJECTS
DISTRICT FUNDED
Replace Computer Workstations - - 17,000 0%
Bonita Pipeline Project 3400' 12" C900 - - 160,000 0%
Meter Replacements - - 3,000 0%
Main Rep-Fire Hydrant & Air Vac - - 45,000 0%
Rate Study 4,940 4,940 33,300 15%
Well #2 New Facility Building - - 25,000 0%
Tank Maintenance - - 7,000 0%
TOTAL DISTRICT FUNDED PROJECTS 4,940 4,940 290,300 2%
GRANT/DEBT FUNDED
State Water Resource Control Board (SWRCB)
Groundwater Well Improvements 7,868 7,868 461,500 5%
SWRCB 0 0 (461,500) 2%
NET GRANT/DEBT FUNDED PROJECTS 7,868 7,868 0
TOTAL NET COST OF CAPITAL PROJECTS $ 12,808 $ 12,808 $290,300
Grant/Debt Funded Activity Summary
Funding Total
Groundwater Well Improvement Project Expenses Received Receivable
Groundwater Well Improvements - FY 22 $ 42,466 $ 42,466 $ -
Groundwater Well Improvements - FY 23 19,744 19,744 -
Groundwater Well Improvements - FY 24 12,935 12,935 -
Groundwater Well Improvements - FY 25 21,339 9,459 11,880
Groundwater Well Improvements - FY 26 7,868 - 7,868
Total $ 96,484 $ 84,604 $ 11,880

Page 8 of 98



Cabazon Water District

August 19, 2025 FAC Meeting Minutes

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street « P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES

Meeting Location:
Cabazon Water District Office
14618 Broadway Street
Cabazon, California 92230

Teleconference:
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188

Meeting Date:
Tuesday, August 19, 2025 — 5:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ROLL CALL

Director Melissa Carlin - Present

Board Chair Terry Tincher - Present
Michael Pollack, General Manager — Present
Evelyn Aguilar, Board Secretary — Present

*Note: This meeting was recorded by the District

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE
1. Discussion: Finance & Audit Committee Report
e Balance Sheet
e Profit and Loss Budget Comparison
e (Capital Detail
Main Reports:

 Balance Sheet - depicts what the District owns and what the District owes.

o Profit & Loss Budget Performance — shows how the District is performing against the budget, and the condition of

the District fiscal year to date.

o Capital Detail — shows activity pertaining to Capital Projects.
Balance Sheet:

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

Page 9 of 98

1



Cabazon Water District | 2
August 19, 2025 FAC Meeting Minutes

The District's combined Cash and Investments with Chase Bank, Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), and California
Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities System (CLASS) balance was $2,518,858 at month end. The District’s total
liabilities were approximately $631,693 at month end.

Budget to Actual: - Year to date (YTD) is 8.3% of the vyear.

Revenue:

7. Basic Facilities Fee: Fees for new service connections, meter installations, and upgrades. These revenues are
budgeted conservatively due to their unpredictable nature. YTD is 30% of the annual budget due to three new
services requested in July, which is higher than anticipated for this time of year. 2 new 3/4” services were
requested and one upgrade from 5/8” to 3/4” meter requested.

13. Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income: Recycling revenues and other miscellaneous revenues. This account is not
budgeted due to unpredictable activity. YTD includes $38,000 due to the sale of the 2022 F-250.

15. Interest Income-Investment Accounts: Interest earnings in the District's LAIF and other investment accounts. YTD is
at 12% due to higher interest rates than anticipated.

Expenses:

27. Total Payroll: YTD is 10% of the annual budget due to having 3 payrolls in July instead of the typical two payrolls.

32. Line R&M Materials: Materials for line repair and maintenance. YTD is 36% of the annual budget due to a $6.700
purchase of ball corp and angle ball meter valves as well as $9,500 for street paving at 49883 Mt. View and 50300
Bonita. However, the street paving was performed in June and will be moved to FY 25.

46. Computer Services: Monthly IT support. YTD is at 12%. The District will be switching from VC3 to Visual Edge IT at
the end of August, which will be a cost less per month.

65. Tractor Expenses/Maintenance: Tractor repair and maintenance expenses. Expenses vary throughout the year.
YTD is 34% of budget due to replacement of 4 tires on the 2006 GMC. However, the costs for the tires will be
reclassified to “Service Trucks Repair & Maintenance.

Preliminary net income as of July 31st is $101,022.

2. Discussion: Miscellaneous District Financial Matters
3. Finance & Audit Committee District Payables Review and Approval/Signing

PUBLIC COMMENT

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to staff for investigation and
reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from discussing or
taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on specific agenda items, please
advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to three (3) minutes.
Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the speaker will be
notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec. 53232.3(d))

ADJOURNMENT
Meeting adjourned at 5:08 PM on Tuesday, August 19, 2025 and the FAC proceeded to check signing.

Terry Tincher, Board Chair Evelyn Aguilar, Secretary
Board of Directors Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District Cabazon Water District

ADA Compliance Issues
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to participate in a
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist staff
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

Page 10 of 98



Cabazon Water District | 1
August 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street » P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
MINUTES

Meeting Location:
14618 Broadway St.
Cabazon, CA 92230

Teleconference:
Dial-in #: 978-990-5321
Access Code: 117188

Email: info@cabazonwater.org

Meeting Date:
Tuesday, August 19, 2025 — 6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
REMEMBRANCE OF OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN
ROLL CALL

Director Guillermo Perez - Present

Director Melissa Carlin - Present

Director Alan Davis - Present

Board Vice Chair Taffy Brock - Present
Board Chair Terry Tincher - Present
Michael Pollack, General Manager - Present
Evelyn Aguilar, Board Secretary - Present

Note: This meeting was recorded by the District

CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters in this category are considered to be consistent with the Board/District goals, District Policies and
Regulations adopted and/or approved by the Board of Directors, and will be enacted in one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items. If discussion is required, items may be removed from the consent calendar and
will be considered separately.

1. Approval of:

Page 1 of 5

Page 11 of 98



Cabazon Water District | 2
August 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

a. Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and Warrants of July 15, 2025
b. Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of July 15, 2025

Motion to approve following consent calendar items (a.) Finance and Audit Committee Meeting Minutes and
Warrants of July 15, 2025 and (b.) Regular Board Meeting Minutes and Warrants of July 15, 2025 made by
Director Davis and 2" by Director Perez.

Director Perez - Aye

Director Carlin - Aye

Director Davis - Aye

Board Vice Chair Brock - Aye
Board Chair Tincher - Aye

2. Warrants - None
3. Awards of Contracts — None

NEW BUSINESS
1. Discussion/Action: Rate Study Update by Water Economics Resources

» Sanjay from Water Resources Economics presented the Rate Study progress. The main concern of the
current rate structure is the 31 tier, which is very difficult to justify legally, since conservation can no longer
be the reason for a difference in rates. The proposed rates consist of 2 tiers for residential customers, which
will increase the overall cost for low to mid-range water users to make up for the costly 31 tier being
removed. Due to the rate structure changes, it was recommended that there be a 0% increase the first year,
and then a max of 3% each of the following years for the next 5 years. The Board did not suggest any major
changes to the Rate Study so far, and gave the go-ahead for Water Resources Economics to prepare the
final report, with the new rates expected to be adopted at the December 16 Board meeting.

2. Discussion/Action: 2018 Ford F-350 - Continue to Finance (60 Months, 10.59% APR), or Pay Off
> Financing would lead to almost $9,000 in interest throughout the 60 months.
Motion to pay off the 2018 Ford F-350 made by Board Vice Chair Brock and 2" by Director Carlin.

Director Perez - Aye

Director Carlin - Aye

Director Davis - Aye

Board Vice Chair Brock - Aye
Board Chair Tincher - Aye

OLD BUSINESS
1. Discussion/Updates:  Discussion/Updates with SGPWA Director(s) regarding various matters

» SGPWA Director Sarah Wargo was present and updated the Board:

A new monitoring well was recently drilled off Sunset Blvd. Another one will be drilled soon.

A 7t Heli-Hydrant has been approved and will be located in the Banning Bench.

Scott Bruckner is reaching out to High Valley to get their input on the proposed Cabazon EIFD.
The GSA Groundwater Sustainability Plan update is being worked on.

O O O O

Page 2 of 5

Page 12 of 98



Cabazon Water District | 3
August 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

2. Discussion/Action: Community Involvement
UPDATES
1. Update: CWD Operations Report

(by GM Pollack)

> On July 22, there were 2 EIFD meetings at the Community Center. GM Pollack was interviewed by Channel

3 News about the benefits of the proposed program. Another 2 meetings regarding the proposed Cabazon

EIFD will be held on August 26.

The Well #2 site building is under construction. The walls are up. After the building is complete, there will be

a “field trip” to see the site.

GM Pollack was contacted by a contractor for the development of 30 homes at Bonita and Broadway.

The lot on the corner of Apache Tr and Bonita is expected to be used to park trucks for a food delivery

service.

The District recently sold the 2022 F-250, and got a 2018 Ford F-350. GM Pollack noted that the Ford Fiesta

has 90k miles and Toyota Tundra has 171k miles, and suggested that the District purchase a small truck to

replace one or both of the vehicles, when the time comes.

» A meeting was scheduled to discuss Grant Funding opportunities, but was cancelled since the State Board
held a meeting to discuss changing the priorities for Grant funding to include more than just “At-Risk” and
“Failing” systems.

Y VV VY

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Any person may address the Board of Directors at this time on any matter within the subject matter jurisdiction of the
Cabazon Water District that is not listed on the agenda; however, any matter that requires action will be referred to
staff for investigation and reported at a subsequent Board of Directors meeting. The Board of Directors is prohibited
by law from discussing or taking immediate action on items during this public comment period. To comment on
specific agenda items, please advise the Board secretary prior to the meeting. Each public comment will be limited to
three (3) minutes. Individuals may not give their time away to another spokesperson. After two (2) minutes, the
speaker will be notified that he/she has one (1) minute remaining. AB 1234 ORAL REPORTS (Gov. Code Sec.
53232.3(d))

> Director Davis spoke as a member of the public and expressed that the landscape in front of the District
office looks bad.

CLOSED SESSION at 7:04 PM
1. Discussion/Action Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Government Code
section 54957): (General Manager)
OPEN SESSION at 7:28 PM

» During closed session, the Board voted to approve a 3 Amendment to General Manager Michael Pollack’s
Employment Agreement, which includes a 4% increase to his compensation and a 1% increase to his
retirement benefits.

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS AND COMMENTS

1. Future Agenda Items

Page 3 of 5

Page 13 of 98



Cabazon Water District | 4
August 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

The Board Chair or the majority of the Board may direct staff to investigate and report back to an
individual(s) and the Board on matters suggested or direct the General Manager/Board Secretary to
place the matter on a future Board meeting.

o Suggested agenda items from the Public.
o Suggested agenda items from Management.
o Suggested agenda items from Board Members.

> Director Davis suggested discussing incentives for members of the community who report water leaks.

2. Management Comments
Staff members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the Board
and public. Topics which may be included on a future meeting agenda may be presented but cannot
be discussed. (3 minutes)

3. Board Member Comments

Board members may speak on items of information not requiring comment or discussion to the
Board and public. (3 minutes)

MISCELLANEOUS

1. Future Board Items/Next Board Meeting Date(s)

a.09/08/2025 (Monday) at 1:30 PM: San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Meeting

b.09/15/2025 (Monday) at 6:00 PM: San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Meeting

¢.09/16/2025 (Tuesday) at 5:00 PM: Finance & Audit Committee Meeting

d.09/16/2025 (Tuesday) at 6:00 PM: Regular Board Meeting

e.09/24/2025 (Wednesday) at 5:00 PM: San Gorgonio Pass Regional Water Alliance Committee Meeting
f. 09/27/2025 (Saturday): Community Cleanup Day at the Cabazon Park

g.10/09/2025 (Thursday) at 6:00 PM: West Desert MAC Meeting at the Community Center

h.TBD: Personnel Committee Meeting

ADJOURNMENT
Motion to adjourn at 7:33 PM made by Director Davis and 2" by Director Carlin.

Director Perez - Aye

Director Carlin - Aye

Director Davis - Aye

Board Vice Chair Brock - Aye
Board Chair Tincher - Aye

Meeting adjourned at 7:33 PM on Tuesday, August 19, 2025

Page 4 of 5

Page 14 of 98



Cabazon Water District
August 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Terry Tincher, Board Chair Evelyn Aguilar, Secretary
Board of Directors Board of Directors
Cabazon Water District Cabazon Water District

ADA Compliance Issues

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act & Government Code Section 54954.2, if special assistance is needed to participate in a
Board meeting, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (951) 849-4442. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist staff
in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide access.

Page 5 of 5

Page 15 of 98



Cabazon Water District
September 16, 2025 Regular Board Meeting

New Business

1.Discussion Item:
[TAB 1]

Rate Study Report by Water Economics Resources

Attachments:
1. 2025 Water Rate Study

Business (951) 849-4442 e FAX (951) 849-2519
Page 16 of 98



Cabazon Water
District

2025 Water Rate Study
Draft Report — September 9, 2025

Prepared by: Water Resources Economics, LLC

PROMOTING THE VALUE AND PRICE OF
WATER SERVICE

Water Resources
‘\ Economics

Page 17 of 98



This page intentionally left blank

Page 18 of 98



_ Water Resources
» Economics

WATER SERVICE

September 9, 2025

Michael Pollack
General Manager
Cabazon Water District
14618 Broadway Street
Cabazon, CA 92230

Subject: Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study Report
Dear Mr. Pollack,

Water Resources Economics, LLC (WRE) is pleased to submit this 2025 Water Rate Study
Report to Cabazon Water District (District). This report documents the results and
recommendations of the 2025 Water Rate Study. The goal of the study was to develop an
updated five-year schedule of water rates that will sufficiently fund the District’s water system
expenses, help the District to meet its financial goals, and comply with cost-of-service
principles.

This study utilized industry-standard rate-setting methodology in accordance with guidelines
developed by the American Water Works Association and incorporates guidance provided by
the District’s Board of Directors and staff. Our project team has a proven record of developing
fair and equitable water rates for numerous public water agencies in California over the past
25 years. We are confident in our ability to develop sound water rates that satisfy the
requirements of Proposition 218.

It has been a pleasure assisting the District, and we appreciate the support provided by
yourself and Ms. Aguilar during this study.

Sincerely,

Sanjay Gaur
Founder / President
Water Resources Economics, LLC

Page 19 of 98



This page intentionally left blank

Page 20 of 98



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. EXECULIVE SUMIMAIY ..uueeereiiiiiiieicrssnneeeeeseissessssssnssesssssssessssssnsssssssssssssssssnnsssssssssssssssssnsssssssss 1
I A 1 (=T ¢ g T @YY VTSP 1
1.2 RALE STUAY OVEIVIEW.....c..eeiieiieieeiiete ettt ettt et st e steeaesaaestaetessaesseeseessessaeseessesseanseeneas 1
I B W= To T LI C=To (U] =T 0 =T £ SRR 1
1.4  Rate-Setting MethOdOIOgY ........cceiiriiiriieeeeee e 2
1.5 Additional Information and DISCIAIMEIS ........ccccueriiieriereeieeiereere et 2
1.6 CUITENT WALET RALES.... ..ottt ettt ettt et esat e st e e st e ebeesateeeeas 2
O A e 1 0= U g TodF= | T o SRR SI 3
1.8  COSt-0f-SEIVICE ANAIYSIS.....coiiiiiiierieiterieeteeie ettt sb e bttt e e b e enes 7
1.9  PropoSed Water RAES........couiiiieieiicereeieeieetet ettt s b ettt et ee b e enes 8
P2 1 = o = - o N 11
2.1 Financial Plan MethOdolOgy .......cccoiiiririiieieieiesesese et 11
2.2 REVEINUES ..ottt ettt st e h e et e bt e s abe e e bt e e be e bt e s abe e bt e e abeeaateeabeenateenbeenaaenateas 11
2.3 OPErating EXPENSES ....ccueiuiiiiiieieteste sttt ettt sttt ettt st sa e bbbt ettt be b naes 15
P T o] AR T =T VT RS 16
2.5  Capital IMProvemMeNnt PIAN ...ttt 17
2.6 FINANCIAI POHCIES ..ottt sttt e sb et e e e e saeeseeneas 17
2.7  Status QUO FINANCIAI PIAN ........oouieieeieeeeeee et e 18
2.8  Proposed FINANCIal PIan ...........ccuoiiiiiiieeeeee ettt et e 23
3. COSt-Of-SErvViCe ANAIYSIS ..cvceriiiiiiiiiiiiirnnreietiiesccecssnnneeeeesesssesssssnssseesssssssssssssnssssssssssssssnns 28
3.1  Cost-0f-Service MethOdOlOgY .......ccccuiiieiieieeeeceeie ettt 28
3.2 REeVENUE REQUIFEMENT .......cviciecieeiecee ettt sttt e ettt e e st be e e sbeeteeasesaeeseennas 28
3.3 COSt FUNCLONANZALION .......cciiieiisiesieeeeieeee ettt sttt st e e e sbesbeenas 29
3.4  Cost Causation COMPONENLS .......cceeiiiieiiieieeeerte et seesee e e s et e se e s e e sbeesaesseeseessesseeseennas 31
3.5  System Capacity AllOCALIONS........cceccviiieiieieceece ettt et aeennas 38
3.6  Allocation to COSt COMPONENTS .......cceecuieiiieiieiierieeie et re et sbe e steeteeaesreereennas 42
3.7 UNit COSt CAlCUIALION ......eeuieiieieiisiesieeeeee ettt sttt st neesbestennas 44
3.8  Cost-of-Service by CUSIOMEr ClaSS........cccvieieiiieiecieceeeeese e 46
4. WaALEl RALES... s 47
4.1 Rate Design MethodOlOgY .......cceiiiiiiiiiiiiiecie ettt et saae e ve e e 47
4.2  Proposed Changes to RAte StIUCIUIE...........oovieiieeiieeeceeeeee et 47
4.3  Proposed Monthly fixed SErvice Charges ........cccoceevieiiiecieceese e 47
4.4  Proposed Monthly fixed fire SErvice Charges........cccvveevieeseececce e 48
4.5  Proposed CommOity CRAIQES.......cccoiieviiiieiieieeiesieee et ee et eae e te e sseesteeae e eseeneas 49
4.6 Proposed Water Rate SChedUIe ...........c.ooeeiieiieieieeeceeee et 51
N O 1110 ] 1 1= T o [ 0] 0 = Ud OSSP PP 52
D, APPENAICES tiieerrrtiiiiiiicscrnnereeesetssssssssnnsesesssessssssssannssassssssssssssnnsnessssssssssssssnssasssssssssssnns 54
5.1  Financial Plan APPENTICES .......cccueveeierieiieieeiese ettt ee st te e sae e s etessaesseeseeneas 54
5.2  Cost-of-Service AnalysiS APPENUICES........cceeierieierierieieeee s esiesee e sre e e seeeee e enseenes 58

Water Resources Economics
i

Page 21 of 98



LIST OF TABLES

Table 1-1: Current Monthly Fixed Service Charges ... 3
Table 1-2: Current Monthly Fixed Fire Service Charges .........ccccoeeeeieieneninenineneeeeeeienenens 3
Table 1-3: Current CommOdity CRAIGES ........coeiiiiriiieieeere et 3
Table 1-4: RESEIVE POlICY TAIGEIS ......cuiiiieriieierieeieeiee ettt sttt nenne 4
Table 1-5: Proposed Financial Plan SCENANO ...........cccueiirireniiinieeeeeesesese e 6
Table 1-6: Proposed Monthly Fixed Service Charges ... 9
Table 1-7: Proposed Monthly Fixed Fire Service Charges ........ccccocveevieienineninineeeeeeenenens 9
Table 1-8: Proposed CommOdity CHAIGES ........coeeiriiiiieiererieeeneee ettt 9
Table 1-9: Proposed Residential Customer IMPAaCES.........coceveriririeieieneeeseeeeeee e 10
Table 2-1: Current Monthly Fixed Service Charges ...t 12
Table 2-2: Current Monthly Fixed fire Service Charges .......cccoveeieieienenineneneeeeeeeese e 12
Table 2-3: Current CommOdity CRAIGES ........coceriiirieieieeese et 12
Table 2-4: Projected Number of Water MELEIS .......c.coiiiiriiinirenieeeeeesese et 13
Table 2-5: Projected Number of Private Fire LINES ........cccoccvevieiieieceeceeeceeeee e 13
Table 2-6: Demand Growth ASSUMPLIONS ......cc.ccveiiieiiecieieeee ettt s ae s 14
Table 2-7: Projected Customer Water Usage (NCT) .....coooveeeiieiieceeeeeee e, 14
Table 2-8: Calculated Rate Revenues at Current RatesS .........ccccecveeeierieneneneneeeeeeee e 15
Table 2-9: REVENUE SUMIMAIY ......ocieiieieeieeie e steste et e teesteeaesteesteessesseesteessesssesseessesssensesssesssenseenes 15
Table 2-10: Expense Inflationary ASSUMPLIONS........cc.ocveiiiieiieseeeeeee et 16
Table 2-11: Operating EXPENSE SUMMAIY ........cc.ccveiieiieiienieeteeeesteesresesesaeessesaesseessesssesseessesseesseenns 16
Table 2-12: EXIStING DEDL SEIVICE ..ottt 16
Table 2-13: Capital Project Costs and Execution Rate...........ccoceeveeeeiecciecieceeeceee e 17
Table 2-14: Status Quo Financial Plan SCENAIIO........ccocvviiiieiiiieeeeceeee et 18
Table 2-15: Projected Cash Flows (Status Quo Financial Plan) ..........c.ccccovevievieiecicceceeenen. 19
Table 2-16: Projected Fund Balances (Status Quo Financial Plan) ...........ccccceevveveviecieceeenenen. 20
Table 2-17: Forecasted Financial Performance (Status Quo Financial Plan).............cccccoc........ 21
Table 2-18: Proposed Financial Plan SCENANIO..........c.ccvevuieiiiieieeeceesteee et 23
Table 2-19: Projected Cash Flows (Proposed Financial Plan).........cccccoovvveniecineeneeceneeeenen, 24
Table 2-20: Projected Fund Balances (Proposed Financial Plan) ..........ccccccovvvevvecenieieneeneenen. 25
Table 2-21: Forecasted Financial Performance (Proposed Financial Plan).........c...ccccceeeveun... 26
Table 3-1: FY 2024 Revenue REeQUIFEMENT..........ccveireeerieiesiesieeeeseesteeaesee e aesseesseesaesseenseeneas 29
Table 3-2: Operating Costs by SysStem FUNCLONS ..........cccvecuivieiieieseereee e e 30
Table 3-3: Capital Assets by SyStem FUNCLIONS .........cccovveiirierieeceeseee e 30
Table 3-4: Revenue Offsets by System FUNCHONS .......c.coveiiiieiieeceeece e 31
Table 3-5: Capacity FacCtor ASSUMPLIONS .......ccevverieiieiereeieseesteete e seeeaesee e aesseesseeseesseenseenees 32
Table 3-6: System-Wide Capacity AllOCALION ...........ccveeereeierieriee et 32
Table 3-7: System Function Allocation to Cost COMPONENLS .......c.ccceeveeieriereeieeiereeee e 34
Table 3-8: Operating Allocation by Cost COMPONENT.........cccoveerieiieriereee e 35
Table 3-9: Capital Allocation by Cost COMPONENT.........c.ccceeciiiierieeceereee e 36
Table 3-10: Revenue Offset Allocation by Cost COmMpPONENt ..........ccceveeeieveeneeieeiereeee e 37
Table 3-11: EqQuIvalent Meter UNITS........ociiiee ettt ae s 38
Table 3-12: EQUIVAIENT FIrE LINES.....c.coiiiieiieieeieieeeee ettt ettt st ae e 39

Water Resources Economics
i

Page 22 of 98



Table 3-13: Customer Demand Capacity........c.ccccecieueeeereeiiesiese et sre et sreeae e enreeneas 40

Table 3-14: Capacity Allocation by Fire and Customer Demand ...........ccccoceeveevieeievieesieceenneennn. 41
Table 3-15: Cost-of-Service Allocation by Cost Component (Preliminary, General) ................ 42
Table 3-16: Cost-of-Service Allocation by Cost Component (Fire Protection, Capacity)......... 43
Table 3-17: Cost-of-Service Allocation by Cost Component (Final) .......cccccvevveveeeeneecieceeienen. 44
Table 3-18: Units of Service DefiNItiONS ........coovvieiririeieresesesee e 44
Table 3-19: Unit Cost by COSt COMPONENT.......coiiiiiiieieietereete ettt 45
Table 3-20: Cost-of-Service Allocation by Cost Component and Customer Class................... 46
Table 4-1: Revenue Neutral Monthly Fixed Service Charges ........ccccooevenenenineneeeeniesicnenene 48
Table 4-2: Proposed Monthly Fixed Service Charges after Adjustment ...........cccccevvevevvenenen. 48
Table 4-3: Revenue Neutral Monthly Fixed Fire Service Charges ........cccocveveneeeeienienienennenn 49
Table 4-4: Proposed Monthly Fixed Fire Service Charges after Adjustment............ccccceevennene. 49
Table 4-5: Capacity Unit Cost by CusStomer Class .........cccveviriereriiniereeeseese e 49
Table 4-6: Revenue Offset by CUSIOMEr CIASS .......ccooueiiriririninieeeeeee e 50
Table 4-7: Revenue Neutral Commodity Charges (Per NCf).......coveieieienininineeeeeee 50
Table 4-8: Proposed Commodity Charges after Adjustment (per NCF) ........ccevevrriieiencnenne 51
Table 4-9: Proposed Revenue AJUSTMENTS ........coiiiiiiiirirerieienieeeee et 51
Table 4-10: Proposed Monthly Fixed Service Charges ........cccoeveeieierieneneneneneeeeeeeeseesee e 51
Table 4-11: Proposed Monthly Fixed Fire Service Charges .........ccccooeveveneneneneneeieieeenee 52
Table 4-12: Proposed Commodity Charges (Per NCE) ... 52
Table 4-13: Proposed Residential Customer IMPACLS ........c.cceeveeieieeiiceceeeee e 52
Table 5-1: ReVENUES (DELAI) .....cc.oceeiieieeeecece ettt ettt e ennas 54
Table 5-2: Operating EXPenses (Detall) .........cceiieiieiieeecieeceeseee ettt 55
Table 5-3: Operating Expenses by System Functions (Detalil).........c.ccceeevveveeviiiecicceceeenen, 58
Table 5-4: Capital Assets by System Functions (Detail) ..........ccceeveeveeieeciiiereeecee e, 61

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1-1: Projected Fund Balances (Status Quo Financial Plan) ..........c.cccceeovevevieveccieceeienen. 5
Figure 1-2: Projected Debt Coverage (Status Quo Financial Plan)........cccccceevieveiveieccieceeenen, 5
Figure 1-3: Projected Fund Balances (Proposed Financial Plan) ............cccccoeevveviiieiiccieceeienen, 7
Figure 1-4: Projected Debt Coverage (Proposed Financial Plan).........ccccccoevevieiiieneccieecieenen, 7
Figure 2-1: Revenue Requirements vs. Revenues (Status Quo Financial Plan) ..................... 21
Figure 2-2: Projected Debt Coverage (Status Quo Financial Plan).........ccccccocvveviiiiieniiiiennenns 22
Figure 2-3: Projected Fund Balances (Status Quo Financial Plan) .........ccccccoevevvveeieeneeceeneeene 22
Figure 2-4: Revenue Requirements vs. Revenues (Proposed Financial Plan) ......................... 26
Figure 2-5: Projected Debt Coverage (Proposed Financial Plan).........cccccecevievencevceeneeceeseen 27
Figure 2-6: Projected Fund Balances (Proposed Financial Plan) ..........ccccecevvevencenceeneecieseene 27

Water Resources Economics
iii

Page 23 of 98



1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 SYSTEM OVERVIEW

Cabazon Water District (District) provides potable water service to over 900 metered
connections, which include Single Family Residential and Non-Residential customer classes.
The District’s service area encompasses the unincorporated community of Cabazon and
other unincorporated areas of Riverside County and covers approximately 7,040 acres.

The water system, which is owned and operated by the District, consists of four groundwater
wells (Well #1, Well #2, Well #5, and Well #4), distribution pipelines, and multiple water
storage facilities and tanks. The District’s only water supply source is local groundwater
produced from the District’s wells.

1.2 RATE STUDY OVERVIEW

Public retail water agencies in California typically conduct a cost-of-service study every five
years to ensure that customers are appropriately charged for water service and to reestablish
the cost-of-service nexus that is required by Proposition 218. The District’s existing rate
structure was developed in 2020 in a prior cost-of-service study.

The District engaged Water Resources Economics, LLC (WRE) in 2025 to conduct a
comprehensive water rate study, with the following objectives:

e Develop a five-year financial plan to meet financial targets for Fiscal Year (FY) 20261
to FY 2030

e Conduct a cost-of-service analysis based on the most recent data and customer use
characteristics

e Develop a five-year water rate schedule for FY 2026 through FY 2030

1.3 LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

Legal considerations relating to retail water rates in California focus heavily on Proposition
218, which was enacted in 1996 and is now reflected in Article XlII C and Article XIlI D of the
California Constitution. Proposition 218 states that “property related fees and charges” (which
include retail water rates) may not exceed the proportional cost of providing the service to the
customer and may not be used for any purpose other than providing said service. The
practical implication is that public retail water agencies in California must demonstrate a
sufficient nexus between the costs incurred by the agency to provide water service and the
rates charged to customers. The primary means by which retail water agencies address this
requirement is by conducting a “cost-of-service analysis.”

Proposition 218 also affects the rate adoption process by requiring agencies to hold a public
hearing to adopt rates. The agency must mail public hearing notices to all customers no
fewer than 45 days prior to the public hearing. The public hearing notices must clearly show

1FY 2026 is the fiscal year starting July 1, 2025 and ending June 30, 2026.

Water Resources Economics
1

Page 24 of 98



all proposed rate changes, provide information on the public hearing date/time/location, and
provide instructions on how customers may protest the proposed rate changes. If a majority
of customers submit a protest, the proposed rate changes cannot be adopted.

1.4 RATE-SETTING METHODOLOGY

This study was conducted using industry-standard methodology outlined by the American
Water Works Association (AWWA) in its Manual of Water Supply Practices M1: Principles of
Water Rates, Fees and Charges, Seventh Edition (M1 Manual). The rate study process
includes the following steps:

1. Financial Plan: Annual revenues and expenses are projected over the rate-setting
period to determine the magnitude of rate increases needed to maintain financial
sufficiency. Financial policies, such as reserve targets, are also evaluated and updated
if necessary.

2. Cost-of-Service Analysis: Costs are allocated to customers in proportion to use of
and burden on the water system. The overall goal is to establish a robust nexus
between the costs incurred by an agency and the rates charged to customers, as
required by Proposition 218.

3. Rate Design: The existing rate structure is evaluated, and potential changes are
identified. A multi-year proposed rate schedule is then calculated directly from the
results of the financial plan and cost-of-service analysis.

4. Rate Study Documentation: A rate study report is developed to document the
proposed rate development process. This provides transparency and enhances legal
defensibility in light of Proposition 218 requirements. This document serves as the
report for this rate study.

1.5 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND DISCLAIMERS

This report summarizes the data, analyses, processes, and results of the District’s water rate
study. Some important information to keep in mind when reading the report includes the
following:

e All study projections are based on the best available data as of June 2025.

¢ All table values are rounded to the nearest digit shown unless stated otherwise.
However, all calculations are based on precise values. Attempting to manually
replicate the calculations described in this report from the values displayed in tables
may therefore produce slightly different results.

e All current and proposed rates and charges in this report are shown on a monthly
basis.

1.6 CURRENT WATER RATES
CURRENT WATER RATES

The District’s current water rate structure includes monthly fixed service charges by meter
size, monthly fixed fire service charges by fire line diameter (charged to private fire customers

Water Resources Economics
2

Page 25 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

only), and commodity charges by water usage measured in hundred cubic feet (hcf). Single
Family Residential customers’ commodity charges have three tiers; other Non-Residential
customers have a uniform commodity charge. Table 1-1, Table 1-2, and Table 1-3 show the
current monthly fixed service charges, monthly fixed fire service charges, and commodity
charges, respectively.

Table 1-1: Current Monthly Fixed Service Charges

Line Monthly Fixed Service As of

Charges 1/2025
1  5/8-inch meter $37.53
2 3/4-inch meter $53.21
3 1-inch meter $84.56
4 1 1/2-inch meter $162.94
5 2-inch meter $257.01
6  3-inch meter $507.84
7  4-inch meter $790.02
8 | 10-inch meter $6,590.45
9  Construction (3-inch meter) $532.61

Table 1-2: Current Monthly Fixed Fire Service Charges

Line Monthly Fixed Fire Service As of
Charges 1/2025
1  4-inch connection $38.33
2 | 6-inch connection $79.67
3  8-inch connection $134.79

Table 1-3: Current Commodity Charges

. . . . As of
Line Commodity Charges (per hcf) Tier Width 1/2025

1 Single Family Residential

2 | Tierl 0-7 hcf $2.22

3 Tier2 8-14 hcf $7.88

4  Tier3 14+ hcf $14.45

5  Non-Residential $5.37

1.7 FINANCIAL PLAN

WRE worked closely with District staff and the District’s Board of Directors to determine the
financial plan scenario that best suits the District’'s needs. The results and recommendations
of the water rate study are driven by the District’s financial performance, input from District
staff, and feedback and direction from the Board.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The District’s financial performance is driven by the ability of the current water rates to meet
the District’s funding needs. To maintain financial sufficiency, water rates must fully fund
operations and maintenance (O&M) costs, capital improvement plan (CIP) expenditures, and

Water Resources Economics
3

Page 26 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

any relevant financial policies, which typically include target reserve balances and debt
coverage.

The key factors affecting financial performance include:

e Capital investment needs over the next five years: The District anticipates to spend
$1.9 million over the next five years (FY 2026 through FY 2030) to complete critical
projects such as well repairs, tank maintenance, and pipeline rehabilitation.

e Operating cost increases: Operating expenses are expected to increase by 6% on
average each year of the study period due to inflationary pressures.

e Reserve policy targets: The District’s current reserve policy, which is shown in Table
1-4, includes targets for operating and capital reserves for the first year of the study
period. The current reserve policy is intended to provide sufficient cash on hand to
meet short-term cash flow requirements and to execute CIP projects.

Table 1-4: Reserve Policy Targets

Line Reserve Polic Policy Targets FY 2026
1  Operating Reserve 180 days of O&M expenses $739,726
2 | Capital Reserve 6% of net capital assets $518,428
Combined Reserves
3 Target $1,258,154

STATUS QUO FINANCIAL PLAN

The first step in evaluating the District’s financial performance is to develop a “status quo
financial plan,” which is the scenario in which the District does not increase its water rate
revenues or issue new debt to fund CIP. This exercise is to determine whether the District’s
current water rates are sufficient to meet key financial performance metrics. This section
shows two important metrics: fund balance and debt coverage.

Figure 1-1 shows the projected fund balances under the status quo scenario. The green bars
represent the ending fund balances, and the dashed line represents the reserve policy
targets. In this scenario the District is able to meet its reserve targets without revenue
adjustments.

Water Resources Economics
4

Page 27 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Figure 1-1: Projected Fund Balances (Status Quo Financial Plan)

Fund Balance

» $3.5
c
L
= $3.0
=
$2.9M [$2.8M|
2.5 R $2.8M [$2.9] $2.8M

s $2.6M $2.7M $2.6M

$2.0

$1 5 - e - - - - -

$1.0

$0.5

$0.0

FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
[ Ending Balance = = = Reserve Target + Alert Balance

Figure 1-2 shows the projected debt service coverage under the status quo scenario. The
District’s existing debt service has a required coverage of 185%. Debt coverage is calculated
by dividing the net operating revenue (revenues less O&M expenses) by annual debt service
payments. The District currently has three existing loans, two of which will be retired in FY
2027. In this scenario, the District can meet its debt coverage requirements without revenue
adjustments.

Figure 1-2: Projected Debt Coverage (Status Quo Financial Plan)

Debt Coverage

2500%

2000%

1500%

1000%

500%

0%
FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030

= = = Required Debt Coverage = Calculated Debt Coverage e  Alert Coverage

PROPOSED REVENUE ADJUSTMENTS AND DEBT ISSUANCES

Overall annual increases in water rate revenues resulting from rate increases are referred to
as “revenue adjustments.” WRE worked with the Board and District staff to determine the
most appropriate financial plan scenario, which is shown in Table 1-5.

Water Resources Economics
5

Page 28 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

The proposed financial plan scenario includes no revenue adjustment in the first year (FY
2026), followed by 3% annual revenue adjustments in the final four years of the study period
(FY 2027 through FY 2030). No revenue adjustment is proposed in FY 2026 to minimize
distributional impacts to customers in the first year of the proposed rate schedule resulting
from proposed changes to the current rate structure.

The status quo financial plan is projected to meet the District’s reserve policy and debt
coverage requirements over the next five years. However, 3% revenue adjustments are
proposed in the final four years of the study period to build up reserves in anticipation of
significantly increased CIP funding requirements in FY 2031 through FY 2035. This will
reduce the likelihood that substantial revenue adjustments will be necessary during the next
five-year rate-setting cycle for FY 2031 through FY 2035, thus smoothing out rate increases
over time and avoiding short-term rate shocks to customers.

Table 1-5: Proposed Financial Plan Scenario

Debt
Proceeds for
CIP

Revenue Debt
Adjustments  Issuance

Line Fiscal Year Effective Date

End of January

1 FY 2026 o 0.0% $0 $0
> FY 2027 End of January 3.0% $0 $0
3 FY 2028 S ‘)Zfo“]z%“”ary 3.0% $0 $0
4 FY 2029 End Ozfojzas‘)“”ary 3.0% $0 $0
5  FY 2030 S %fo‘g%”“ary 3.0% $0 $0

PROPOSED FINANCIAL PLAN

The proposed financial plan applies the revenue adjustments and debt issuance, shown in
Table 1-5, to reevaluate financial performance based on the same two metrics: fund balance
and debt coverage.

Figure 1-3 shows the projected fund balances under the proposed scenario. In this scenario,
the District will meet its reserve targets for all years of the planning period and build up
additional reserves in anticipation of significant CIP spending in FY 2031 through FY 2035.

Water Resources Economics
6

Page 29 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Figure 1-3: Projected Fund Balances (Proposed Financial Plan)

Fund Balance

w 535
c
2
= $3.0
= $3.0M $3.0M $3.0M
$2.5 $2.7M $2.6M
' $2.6M -
$2.0
$1.0
$0.5
$0.0
FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
[ Ending Balance = = = Reserve Target + Alert Balance

Figure 1-4 shows the projected debt coverage under the proposed scenario. The District will
meet coverage requirements for all years.

Figure 1-4: Projected Debt Coverage (Proposed Financial Plan)

Debt Coverage
3000%
o]

2500% 2282%
2000%
1500%
1000%
500%
0%

FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
= = = Required Debt Coverage Calculated Debt Coverage ®  Alert Coverage

1.8 COST-OF-SERVICE ANALYSIS

A cost-of-service analysis is a technical process used to determine the cost of providing
water service to the District’'s customers based on each customer’s use of and burden on the
water system. The cost-of-service analysis is the basis of the nexus between the costs
incurred by the utility to provide water service and the water rates charged to customers,
which is a requirement of Proposition 218.

Water Resources Economics
7

Page 30 of 98



COST-OF-SERVICE METHODOLOGY

The cost-of-service methodology is based on industry standards set forth by AWWA in its M1
Manual; this rate study utilizes the base-extra capacity method. The overall goal of the cost-
of-service analysis is to develop “unit costs,” which provide the basis from which proposed
rates are directly calculated from. Note that although the study period spans five years, the
cost-of-service analysis is limited to a single representative year referred to as the “test year.’
The test year in this study is FY 2026. The key steps in conducting a water cost-of-service
analysis are outlined below:

e Revenue requirement determination: The total rate revenue requirement for the test
year is determined based on the results of the proposed financial plan and divided into
primary sub-components (operating, capital, etc.).

e Cost functionalization: Operating and capital costs are evaluated and assigned to
“functional categories” in the water system (e.g., customer service, groundwater wells,
distribution, etc.). This provides a proportional breakdown of system costs by
functional category.

e Revenue requirement allocation to cost causation components: Functionalized
costs are allocated to “cost causation components” (e.g., water supply, base delivery,
max day delivery, etc.), which is used to attribute customers’ use of the system to the
District’s incursion of costs.

e Unit cost development: The rate revenue requirement allocation for each individual
cost causation component is divided by the appropriate units of service to establish
unit costs for the test year. Unit costs provide the basis from which proposed rates are
calculated.

1.9 PROPOSED WATER RATES

WRE worked closely with the Board and District staff to determine the most appropriate water
rate structure that meets the District’s needs.

PROPOSED RATE STRUCTURE CHANGES

The District’s current rate structure includes a monthly fixed service charge, a monthly fixed
fire service charge, three-tiered commodity charges for Single Family Residential, and
uniform commodity charges for other Non-Residential customers. We propose the following
two key changes to the current rate structure:

e Fixed service charges for 6-inch and 8-inch meters: The District’s current rate
schedule does not include fixed service charges for 6-inch or 8-inch meters, as no
current customers have meters of either size. Because there is a possibility that future
connections will require a 6-inch or 8-inch meter, we recommend adding fixed service
charges for these meter sizes to the proposed rate schedule.

e Two-tiered Single Family Residential commodity charges: WRE recommends
reducing the number of tiers for the Single Family commodity charge from three to two
tiers. This recommended change will result in a rate structure more closely aligned
with evolving interpretations of Proposition 218 legal requirements. The proposed tier

Water Resources Economics
8

Page 31 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

1 allotment will remain unchanged at 7 hcf per month. Proposed tier 2 will include all
monthly water use above 7 hcf.

PROPOSED FIVE-YEAR WATER RATE SCHEDULE

The proposed five-year water rate schedule is based on the proposed rate structure changes,
the updated cost-of-service analysis, and the proposed revenue adjustments for the five-year
study period. The rate schedule shows the proposed water rates to be implemented in
January 2026 through January 2030. Table 1-6, Table 1-7, and Table 1-8 show the
proposed monthly fixed service charges, monthly fixed fire service charges, and commodity
charges, respectively.

Table 1-6: Proposed Monthly Fixed Service charges

Effective

Monthly Fixed Service Jan Effective Effective Effective Effective
e Charge 2026 Jan. 2027 Jan. 2028 Jan. 2029 Jan. 2030
1 | 5/8-inch meter $37.17 $38.29 $39.44 $40.63 $41.85
2 | 3/4-inch meter $51.90 $53.46 $55.07 $56.73 $58.44
3  1-inch meter $81.36 $83.81 $86.33 $88.92 $91.59
4 | 11/2-inch meter $155.02 $159.68 $164.48 $169.42 $174.51
5 | 2-inch meter $243.40 $250.71 $258.24 $265.99 $273.97
6 | 3-inch meter $479.10 $493.48 $508.29 $523.54 $539.25
7  4-inch meter $744.26 $766.59 $789.59 $813.28 $837.68
8 | 6-inch meter $1,480.81  $1,525.24  $1,571.00 $1,618.13 $1,666.68
9  8-inch meter $2,364.67  $2,435.62 $2,508.69 $2,583.96 $2,661.48
10 | 10-inch meter $6,194.72  $6,380.57  $6,571.99  $6,769.15 $6,972.23
11 Construction (3-inch meter) $479.10 $493.48 $508.29 $523.54 $539.25

Table 1-7: Proposed Monthly Fixed Fire Service Charges

Monthly Fixed Fire  Effective Effective Effective Effective Effective

Service Charge Jan. 2026 Jan. 2027 Jan. 2028 Jan. 2029 Jan. 2030
1  4-inch connection $117.58 $121.11 $124.75 $128.50 $132.36
2  6-inch connection $326.88 $336.69 $346.80 $357.21 $367.93
3 8-inch connection $687.87 $708.51 $729.77 $751.67 $774.23

Table 1-8: Proposed Commodity charges

Commodity Charge (per Effective Effective Effective Effective Effective

hcf) Jan. 2026 Jan. 2027 Jan. 2028 Jan. 2029 Jan. 2030

1 Single Family Residential

2 Tier 1 (0-7 hcf) $3.53 $3.64 $3.75 $3.87 $3.99
3 Tier 2 (7+ hcf) $8.44 $8.70 $8.97 $9.24 $9.52
4 | Non-Residential $5.38 $5.55 $5.72 $5.90 $6.08

CUSTOMER IMPACTS

WRE evaluated the impacts to the Single Family Residential customer class, which
represents approximately 94% of the District’s meter connections, based on the proposed
water rates for FY 2026. Table 1-9 shows the proposed impacts for a Single Family

Water Resources Economics
9

Page 32 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Residential customer with a 5/8-inch meter (the most common meter size within this class,
representing over 95% of customers) at various levels of monthly usage. For the average
Single Family Residential customer that uses 8 hcf of water per month, the monthly bill
increase will be $9.37 or 15.4%, which reflects the impact of the cost-of-service analysis and
proposed rate structure changes.

Table 1-9: Proposed Residential Customer Impacts
Monthly

Residential Current Proposed Difference Difference

Customer Impacts Bill %) (%)
1  10th Percentile 1 $39.75 $40.70 $0.95 2.4%
2 25th Percentile 3 $44.19 $47.76 $3.57 8.1%
3 50th Percentile 6 $50.85 $58.35 $7.50 14.7%
4  Average 8 $60.95 $70.32 $9.37 15.4%
5  75th Percentile 12 $92.47 $104.08 $11.61 12.6%
6  90th Percentile 16 $137.13 $137.84 $0.71 0.5%

Water Resources Economics
10

Page 33 of 98



2. FINANCIAL PLAN
2.1 FINANCIAL PLAN METHODOLOGY

The purpose of a financial plan is to project revenues, expenses, cash flows, reserve
balances, and debt coverage over a multi-year period to assess financial sufficiency and
performance and to determine the amount of required rate revenue. For this study, the
planning period is from FY 2026 through FY 2030; data for FY 2025 or earlier is shown when
needed to represent actual data inputs. The key steps in developing a financial plan for a
water enterprise are below:

Revenue projections: Annual revenues from rates and other miscellaneous sources
are projected over the planning period. Rate revenues are projected based on current
rates to establish baseline revenues from which the need for additional rate increases
can be evaluated.

Expense projections: Annual expenses are projected over the study period, including
O&M expenses, debt service, and CIP costs. CIP funding options (grants, debt, etc.)
are evaluated.

Financial policy evaluation: Key financial policies include debt coverage
requirements and reserve targets. Debt coverage requirements are typically explicitly
stated in official agreements on outstanding debt issuances. Reserve targets are
typically set by an agency’s elected officials and may need to be periodically evaluated
and updated.

Status quo financial plan projections: Cash flow, reserve balances, and debt
coverage are projected over the study period in the absence of additional rate
increases (this scenario is called the “status quo”). Projected reserve balances and
debt coverage are then compared to the agency’s financial policy requirements and
targets. The status quo financial plan provides a baseline to evaluate the need for rate
increases.

Proposed financial plan projections: The magnitude and timing of annual proposed
revenue increases over the study period are evaluated and determined based on the
agency’s financial policies, financial performance, and policy objectives. Proposed rate
increases (referred to as “revenue adjustments”) should generate sufficient revenue to
recover the agency’s expenses, maintain adequate reserves, and meet all debt
coverage requirements. The proposed financial plan determines the total annual rate
revenue requirement over the study period.

2.2 REVENUES
CURRENT WATER RATES

The District’s current water rates include a monthly fixed service charge based on meter size,
a monthly fixed fire service charge based on fire line diameter (for customers with private fire
service), and a commodity charge based on metered water use in hcf. Single Family
Residential customers have a three-tiered commodity charge; Non-Residential customers
have a uniform commaodity charge.

Water Resources Economics
11

Page 34 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Table 2-1, Table 2-2, and Table 2-3 show the current monthly fixed service charges, monthly
fixed fire service charges, and commodity charges, respectively. The current rates are based

on the District's most recent water rate study and were implemented in January 2025 (for FY

2025).

Table 2-1: Current Monthly Fixed Service Charges

line Monthly Fixed Service As of

Charges 1/2025
1  5/8-inch meter $37.53
2 | 3/4-inch meter $53.21
3  1-inch meter $84.56
4 | 1 1/2-inch meter $162.94
5  2-inch meter $257.01
6 3-inch meter $507.84
7  4-inch meter $790.02
8 | 10-inch meter $6,590.45
9  Construction (3-inch meter) $532.61

Table 2-2: Current Monthly Fixed fire Service Charges

. . . As of
Line Monthly Fire Service Charges 1/2025

1 | 4-inch connection $38.33

2 6-inch connection $79.67

3 8-inch connection $134.79

Table 2-3: Current Commodity Charges
: Commodity Charges (per

Line hcf) Tier Width As of 1/2025
1  Single Family Residential
2  Tierl 0-7 hcf $2.22
3 Tier2 8-14 hcf $7.88
4 | Tier3 14+ hcf $14.45
5 Non-Residential $5.37

CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS AND USAGE

This section details the customer accounts and water usage for all years of the study, which
are referred to as the units of service. Units of service represent the quantity of billing units
that are subject to the District’'s water rates and charges.

Table 2-4 shows the projected number of meters for each customer class for the study
period. District staff provided actual data for FY 2025; this study assumes four new 5/8-inch
and 3/4-inch Single Family Residential connections each year per District staff estimates. The
number of metered connections is the unit of service for the District’'s monthly fixed service
charges.

Water Resources Economics
12

Page 35 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Table 2-4: Projected Number of Water Meters
FY

FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030

UIBEr @ ey [ains 2028 Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

Actual

1 Single Family Residential

2 | 5/8-inch 860 864 868 872 876 880
3 | 3/4-inch 22 26 30 34 38 42
4 1-inch 8 8 8 8 8 8
5 1 1/2-inch 0 0 0 0 0 0
6 2-inch 0 0 0 0 0 0
7 | 3-inch 0 0 0 0 0 0
8 | 4-inch 0 0 0 0 0 0
9 | Subtotal 891 899 907 915 923 931
10

11 | Non-Residential

12 | 5/8-inch 17 17 17 17 17 17
13 | 3/4-inch 2 2 2 2 2 2
14 | l-inch 6 6 6 6 6 6
15 1 1/2-inch 4 4 4 4 4 4
16 | 2-inch 18 18 18 18 18 18
17  3-inch 3 3 3 3 3 3
18 | 4-inch 1 1 1 1 1 1
19 | Contract (10-inch) 1 1 1 1 1 1
20 | Construction (3-inch) 2 2 2 2 2 2
21 | Subtotal - Non-Residential 54 54 54 54 54 54
22

23 | Total - Potable Meters 945 953 961 969 977 985

Table 2-5 shows the projected number of private fire lines for the study period. District staff
provided actual data for FY 2025; this study assumes no growth in private fire connections for
the period. The number of private fire lines is the unit of service for the District’s monthly fixed
fire service charges.

Table 2-5: Projected Number of Private Fire Lines
Number of Private FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030

Fire Lines Actual Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
Private Fire
4-inch connection
6-inch connection
8-inch connection
Subtotal - Private
Fire

g AW NBE
w L NO
w kI NO
w L NO
w L NO
w kI NO
w L NO

Table 2-6 shows the demand growth assumptions for each customer class. WRE worked
with District staff to determine the most appropriate estimates for annual water usage based
on historical trends and future expectations. Current water demand is projected to rebound
slightly to 400 acre-feet per year (AFY) in FY 2026, which is still below the five-year actual
average of 435 AFY. Beyond FY 2026, all projected demand increases are due to new Single
Family Residential customers connecting to the District's water system, which is projected to
add an additional 0.22 AFY in water demand per connection.

Water Resources Economics
13

Page 36 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Table 2-6: Demand Growth Assumptions

Line Water Demand Growth FY 20262 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
1 Single Family Residential 1.2% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9%
2 Non-Residential 1.2% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Table 2-7 shows the projected water usage for each customer class and tier. District staff
provided estimated water usage for FY 2024, which is then projected forward based on the
demand growth assumptions (Table 2-6).

Table 2-7: Projected Customer Water Usage (hcf)

FY 2024 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030

LT Gl el Estimate Projecte  Projecte Projecte Projecte Projecte

(hcf)

d d d d d d
1 Single Family
Residential

2 | Tierl 54,066 54,736 55,223 55,710 56,198 56,685
3 Tier2 19,598 19,841 20,017 20,194 20,371 20,547
4 | Tier3 13,064 13,226 13,344 13,461 13,579 13,697
5 | Subtotal 86,728 87,803 88,584 89,366 90,147 90,929
6

7 | Non-Residential 85,380 86,437 86,437 86,437 86,437 86,437
8

9 Total 172,108 174,240 175,022 175,803 176,585 177,366

REVENUES FROM CURRENT RATES

Table 2-8 shows the calculated water rate revenues for the study period based on the current
effective water rates and the projected units of service. The monthly fixed service charge
revenues (Lines 1-4) are calculated by multiplying the monthly fixed service charge (from
Table 2-1) by the projected meter connections (Table 2-4) for a period of 12 months. The
monthly fixed fire service charge revenues (Lines 6-8) are calculated by multiplying the
monthly fixed fire service charge (from Table 2-2) by the projected private fire connections
(Table 2-5) for a period of 12 months. The commodity charge revenues (Lines 10-16) are
calculated by multiplying the effective commodity charges (from Table 2-3) by the projected
water usage (Table 2-7) in each year.

2 Relative to FY 2024 rather than FY 2025, as estimates/actuals for FY 2025 were not yet available when the study analysis
was conducted.

Water Resources Economics
14

Page 37 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Ra

te Study

Table 2-8: Calculated Rate Revenues at Current Rates

Line Calculated Rate Revenues

1 Monthly Fixed Service Charges
2 Single Family Residential

3 Non-Residential

4 Subtotal

5

6 Monthly Fire Service Charges
7 Private Fire

8 Subtotal

9

10 | Commodity Charges

11 | Single Family Residential

12 Tier 1

13 Tier 2

14 Tier 3

15 Non-Residential

16 | Subtotal

17

18 | Total

REVENUE SUMMARY

FY 2026 FY 2027
$415,673 $420,029
$198,512 $198,512
$614,185 $618,540
$3,530 $3,530
$3,530 $3,530
$121,514 $122,596
$156,346 $157,737
$191,113 $192,814
$464,168 $464,168
$933,141 $937,315
$1,550,855 | $1,559,385

FY 2028

$424,384
$198,512
$622,896

$3,530
$3,530

$123,677
$159,129
$194,515
$464,168
$941,490

$1,567,915

FY 2029

$428,740
$198,512
$627,251

$3,530
$3,530

$124,759
$160,521
$196,216
$464,168
$945,664

$1,576,445

FY 2030

$433,095
$198,512
$631,607

$3,530
$3,530

$125,841
$161,912
$197,918
$464,168
$949,839

$1,584,975

Table 2-9 shows the summary of projected revenues for the study period. District staff
provided the budgeted revenues for FY 2026; all other years are projected based on the
relevant assumptions or calculations. Water rate revenues (Line 1) are equal to the rate
revenues at current rates (Table 2-8, Line 18). Property Taxes (Line 2) and Cell Tower Lease
(Line 3) are inflated for future years based on a 2% growth rate. Interest Income (Line 4) is
calculated based on average fund balances and a 3% interest rate, and miscellaneous
revenues (Line 5) are held constant at FY 2026 budgeted amounts. Detailed revenue
projections are included in the Appendix (Table 5-1).

Table 2-9: Revenue Summary

Line Revenues FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029

Water Rate

1 Revenues $1,550,855 $1,559,385 $1,567,915 $1,576,445

2 Property Taxes $253,000 $258,060 $263,221 $268,486

3 Cell Tower Lease $39,800 $40,596 $41,408 $42,236

4 Interest Income $67,600 $82,105 $85,694 $88,344
Miscellaneous

5 Revenues $172,060 $172,060 $172,060 $172,060

6 Total $2,083,315 $2,112,206 $2,130,299 $2,147,571

2.3 OPERATING EXPENSES
INFLATIONARY ASSUMPTIONS

FY 2030
$1,584,975

$273,855
$43,081
$89,410

$172,060
$2,163,381

WRE worked with District staff to determine annual inflationary assumptions to apply to the
District’'s O&M expense budget. District staff provided the budgeted O&M expenses for FY

Water Resources Economics
15

Page 38 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

2026; all other years are projected based on the inflationary assumptions shown in Table

Table 2-10: Expense Inflationary Assumptions

2-10.
e IMETORELR FY 2027
Assumptions
1 General 4.0%
2 | Electricity & Fuel 10.0%
3 Insurance 10.0%
4 Salaries 5.0%
5 Benefits 6.0%
6 | Capital 4.0%
7 Chemicals 5.0%
8 Non-Inflated 0.0%
9  Non-Recurring -100.0%

OPERATING EXPENSE SUMMARY

Table 2-11 shows the summary of O&M expenses for the study period. District staff provided
budgeted expenses for FY 2026; expenses for other years are projections. All expenses are
inflated based on the assumptions in Table 2-10. Detailed operating expense projections are
included in the Appendix (Table 5-2).

Lin

e
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

FY 2028

4.0%

10.0%
10.0%

5.0%
6.0%
4.0%
5.0%
0.0%

-100.0%

FY 2029 FY 2030

4.0% 4.0%
10.0% 10.0%
10.0% 10.0%
5.0% 5.0%
6.0% 6.0%
4.0% 4.0%
5.0% 5.0%
0.0% 0.0%
-100.0% -100.0%

Table 2-11: Operating Expense Summary

Expenses FY 2026

Payroll Expenses $788,900
Facilities, Wells, Trans-

mission & Distribution (T&D) =~ >3/0:700
Office Expenses $115,900
Support Services $148,900
Other Operating Expenses $15,300
Service Tools & Equipment $50,000
Non-Operating Expenses $4,300
Total $1,500,000

2.4 DEBT SERVICE
EXISTING DEBT SERVICE

Table 2-12 shows the District’s annual debt service for the study period. The District has
existing debt service payments on three outstanding issues (Lines 1-3), totaling
approximately $202,000 over the study period. Debt service payments on two outstanding
issues are projected to end in FY 2027. The proposed financial plan scenario includes no
new debt issuances.

Line
1

FY 2027

$830,898
$405,512

$121,778
$158,114
$15,912
$52,750
$2,960

$1,587,924

FY 2028
$875,149
$436,849

$128,015
$168,022
$16,548
$55,685

$3,022

$1,683,292

Table 2-12: Existing Debt Service

Debt Service FY 2026 FY 2027
$15,754

DWR Loan $48,691

FY 2028

Water Resources Economics

16

$0

FY 2029 FY 2030
$921,775 $970,905
$470,951 $508,078

$134,639 $141,677
$178,685 $190,169
$17,210 $17,899
$58,820 $62,171
$3,087 $3,155
$1,785,168 $1,894,053

FY 2029 FY 2030
$0 $0

Page 39 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

2 Well 4 Loan $21,001 $21,001 $21,001 $21,001 $21,001
3 2022 Ford Loan $17,754 $14,795 $0 $0 $0
4 Total $87,446 $51,550 $21,001 $21,001 $21,001

2.5 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

WRE worked with District staff to project spending on CIP projects over the study period. Itis
estimated that the District will spend approximately $350,000 annually on average on CIP
over the next five years, before accounting for inflation (see Table 2-13, Line 1).2 This
includes five-year CIP projections from the FY 2026 proposed capital budget associated with
the replacement of water meters, water mains, vehicles, and machinery. It also accounts for
significant additional spending on other critical infrastructure upgrades. Annual CIP costs
(see Table 2-13, Line 2) are inflated based on the Capital inflationary factor of 4% per year
(from Table 2-10, Line 6) starting in FY 2027. All CIP is anticipated to be rate funded (i.e., no
new debt or grant funding).

Table 2-13: Capital Project Costs and Execution Rate

Line Capital Projects FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
Levelized Annual CIP
1 (Excluding Inflation) $350,000 | $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000
Levelized Annual CIP

(Including Inflation) $350,000  $364,000 $378,560 $393,702  $409,450
2.6 FINANCIAL POLICIES
RESERVE POLICY

The District’s reserve policy maintains cash on hand to meet short-term cash imbalances and
execute CIP projects. The reserve target for the study period ranges from approximately $1.3
to $1.5 million in the District’s reserve funds.

The District currently has an adopted reserve policy that consists of the following
components:

e Operating Reserve Target: 180 days of operating expenses
e Capital Reserve Target: 6% of net capital assets

DEBT COVERAGE REQUIREMENT

The District’s debt coverage requirement is 185% of annual debt service. To meet coverage
requirements, net revenues (revenues less operating expenses) must equal 185% or more of
annual debt service.

3 This study utilizes a levelized approach to CIP spending, in which annual CIP project expenditures are held constant over
the study period (before accounting for inflation). This simplifies the financial planning process, as actual CIP project
execution may diverge significantly from preliminary projections on an annual basis.

Water Resources Economics
17

Page 40 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

2.7 STATUS QUO FINANCIAL PLAN
STATUS QUO FINANCIAL PLAN SCENARIO

Table 2-14 shows the status quo financial plan scenario, which assumes no revenue
adjustments and no proposed debt issuances. This scenario is used to evaluate the ability of
the current water rates to meet the District’s financial targets and to determine the need for
revenue adjustments.

Table 2-14: Status Quo Financial Plan Scenario

. : . Revenue Debt DL
Line Fiscal Year Effective Date : Proceeds for

Adjustments Issuance cIp

1 FY 2026 January 2026 0.0% $0 $0

2 | FY 2027 January 2027 0.0% $0 $0

3 FY 2028 January 2028 0.0% $0 $0

4 | FY 2029 January 2029 0.0% $0 $0

5 FY 2030 January 2030 0.0% $0 $0

STATUS QUO CASH FLOW PROJECTIONS

Table 2-15 shows the cash flow projections for the status quo financial plan. Revenues*
(Lines 1-8) are from Table 2-9. Operating expenses (Lines 10-18) are from Table 2-11. Net
operating revenue (Line 20) is equal to the difference between total revenues (Line 8) and
total operating expenses (Line 18). Debt service (Lines 22-25) is from Table 2-12. Rate
funded CIP (Line 29) is from Table 2-13. The status quo scenario assumes no new debt; all
CIP is expected to be rate funded. Net cash flow (Line 31) is equal to the net operating
revenue (Line 20) less debt service (Line 25) and rate funded CIP (Line 29).

The net operating revenue in this scenario is positive for all years, meaning that the District’s
current revenues are sufficient to fund its operating expenses. However, the net cash flow in
the status quo scenario is negative starting in FY 2029, meaning that the District’s current
revenues are not sufficient to fund all CIP.

4 Interest income (Line 6) is different in the status quo financial plan scenario because it is based on projected fund
balances. The status quo scenario results in lower fund balances; therefore, the District has less interest income. Table 2-9
shows the interest income for the proposed financial plan scenario.

Water Resources Economics
18

Page 41 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Table 2-15: Projected Cash Flows (Status Quo Financial Plan)

Line Cash Flow Projections

©O© o00~NO U WNE

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

Revenues

Rate Revenues at Existing Rates
Revenue Adjustments

Property Taxes

Cell Tower Lease

Interest Income

Miscellaneous Revenues
Subtotal

Operating Expenses

Payroll Expenses

Facilities, Wells, Transmission & Distribution (T&D)
Office Expenses

Support Services

Other Operating Expenses

Service Tools & Equipment

Non-Operating Expenses

Subtotal

Net Revenue

Debt Service
Existing Debt
Proposed Debt
Subtotal

CIP
Rate Funded
Subtotal

Net Cash Flow

FY 2026

$1,550,855
$0
$253,000
$39,800
$67,600
$172,060
$2,083,315

$788,900
$376,700
$115,900
$148,900
$15,300
$50,000
$4,300
$1,500,000

$583,315
$87,446

$0
$87,446

$350,000
$350,000

$145,869

FY 2027

$1,559,385
$0
$258,060
$40,596
$81,812
$172,060
$2,111,914

$830,898
$405,512
$121,778
$158,114
$15,912
$52,750
$2,960
$1,587,924

$523,990
$51,550

$0
$51,550

$364,000
$364,000

$108,440

Water Resources Economics

19

FY 2028

$1,567,915
$0
$263,221
$41,408
$84,093
$172,060
$2,128,697

$875,149
$436,849
$128,015
$168,022
$16,548
$55,685
$3,022
$1,683,292

$445,405
$21,001

$0
$21,001

$378,560
$378,560

$45,844

FY 2029

$1,576,445
$0
$268,486
$42,236
$83,932
$172,060
$2,143,159

$921,775
$470,951
$134,639
$178,685
$17,210
$58,820
$3,087
$1,785,168

$357,991
$21,001

$0
$21,001

$393,702
$393,702

($56,712)

FY 2030

$1,584,975
$0
$273,855
$43,081
$80,582
$172,060
$2,154,553

$970,905
$508,078
$141,677
$190,169
$17,899
$62,171
$3,155
$1,894,053

$260,500
$21,001

$0
$21,001

$409,450
$409,450

($169,951)

Page 42 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

STATUS QUO FUND BALANCE PROJECTIONS

Table 2-16 shows the fund balance projections for the status quo financial plan. Sources of funds include revenues and uses of
funds include operating expenses, debt service, and CIP. Overall reserves are projected to be drawn down by approximately

$73,000 over the study period.

Table 2-16: Projected Fund Balances (Status Quo Financial Plan)

Line Fund Balance Projections FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
1  Beginning Fund Balance $2,567,900 $2,713,769 $2,822,209 $2,868,053 $2,811,340
2
3 Sources of Funds
4 E:{gsRe"e““eS at Existing $1,550,855 $1,559,385 $1,567,915 $1,576,445  $1,584,975
5 Revenue Adjustments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
6 Property Taxes $253,000 $258,060 $263,221 $268,486 $273,855
7 | Cell Tower Lease $39,800 $40,596 $41,408 $42,236 $43,081
8 | Interest Income $67,600 $81,812 $84,093 $83,932 $80,582
9 Miscellaneous Revenues $172,060 $172,060 $172,060 $172,060 $172,060
10 | Grant Proceeds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
11 Debt Proceeds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
12 | Subtotal $2,083,315 $2,111,914 $2,128,697 $2,143,159 $2,154,553
13
14 | Uses of Funds
15 Expenses $1,500,000 $1,587,924 $1,683,292 $1,785,168 $1,894,053
16 | Debt Service $87,446 $51,550 $21,001 $21,001 $21,001
17  Grant Funded CIP $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
18  Debt Funded CIP $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
19 Rate Funded CIP $350,000 $364,000 $378,560 $393,702 $409,450
20 | Subtotal $1,937,446 $2,003,474 $2,082,853 $2,199,871 $2,324,505
21
22 | Ending Fund Balance $2,713,769 $2,822,209 $2,868,053 $2,811,340 $2,641,389

Water Resources Economics

20

Page 43 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

STATUS QUO FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The District’s financial performance is evaluated based on the reserve targets and debt
coverage requirements, as shown in Table 2-17. Under the status quo financial plan, the
District will meet its reserve targets and debt coverage requirements in all years of the study
period without revenue adjustments.

Table 2-17: Forecasted Financial Performance (Status Quo Financial Plan)

Lén Financial Performance FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
1 Reserve Policies

2  Operating Reserve $739,726  $783,086  $830,117  $880,357  $934,054
3  Capital Reserve $518,428 $518,428 $518,428 $518,428 $518,428
4 Combined Reserves $1,258,15 $1,301,51 @ $1,348,54 | $1,398,78 $1,452,48

Target 4 4 5 5 2

5 Combined Reserves $2,713,7g $2,822,2(9) $2,868,0g $2,811,3gr $2,641,38
6 | Meets Target? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
7

8 | Debt Coverage Target

9  Required Debt Coverage 185% 185% 185% 185% 185%
10 | Calculated Debt Coverage 667% 1016% 2121% 1705% 1240%
11 Meets Target? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Figure 2-1 shows the comparison of revenues and the revenue requirements for the status
guo scenario. The stacked bars represent the revenue requirements, or costs: light blue for
O&M expenses, green for debt service, and dark blue for rate funded CIP. The District will be
adding to its reserves (gray bars) in this scenario through FY 2028. The current revenue,
shown as a solid line, is lower than the revenue requirements starting in FY 2029, meaning
that revenues are insufficient to fund all costs.

Figure 2-1: Revenue Requirements vs. Revenues (Status Quo Financial Plan)

Revenue Requirement

1]
[ =4
B
g $2.0 - - t_—-

$0.5

$0.0
FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030

O&M Expenses s Debt Service s Rate Funded CIP Reserve Funding

Current Revenue == == == Proposed Revenue e  Operating Deficit

Water Resources Economics
21

Page 44 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Figure 2-2 shows the debt coverage projections in the status quo financial plan. The required
debt coverage (dashed line) is equal to 185%. Debt service for two debt issues ends in FY
2027, resulting in higher debt coverage after FY 2027. The District is expected to meet its
debt coverage requirements for all years under the status quo financial plan.

Figure 2-2: Projected Debt Coverage (Status Quo Financial Plan)

Debt Coverage

2500%

2000%

1500%

1000%

500%

0%
FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030

= = = Required Debt Coverage == Calculated Debt Coverage e  Alert Coverage

Figure 2-3 shows the fund balance projections in the status quo financial plan. The District's
ending balance (green bars) will meet the reserve targets (dashed line) in all years of the
study period under the status quo financial plan.

Figure 2-3: Projected Fund Balances (Status Quo Financial Plan)

Fund Balance

, $3.5
c
B
= $3.0
=
$2.8M $2.9M $2.8M
R T = ] ] o
$2.0
$1 5 - - e - . - o
$1.0
$0.5
$0.0
FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
[ Ending Balance = = = Reserve Target + Alert Balance

Water Resources Economics
22

Page 45 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

2.8 PROPOSED FINANCIAL PLAN
PROPOSED FINANCIAL PLAN SCENARIO

Overall annual increases in water rate revenues resulting from rate increases are referred to
as “revenue adjustments.” WRE worked with the Board and District staff to determine the
most appropriate financial plan scenario, which is shown in Table 2-18.

The proposed financial plan scenario includes no revenue adjustment in the first year (FY
2026), followed by 3% annual revenue adjustments in the final four years of the study period
(FY 2027 through FY 2030). No revenue adjustment is proposed in FY 2026 to minimize
distributional impacts to customers in the first year of the proposed rate schedule resulting
from proposed changes to the current rate structure.

The status quo financial plan is projected to meet the District’s reserve policy and debt
coverage requirements over the next five years but is insufficient to fully recover all CIP. We
propose 3% revenue adjustments in the final four years of the study period to recover all CIP
over the study period, and to build up reserves in anticipation of significantly increased CIP
funding requirements in FY 2031 through FY 2035. This will reduce the likelihood that
substantial revenue adjustments will be necessary during the next five-year rate-setting cycle
for FY 2031 through FY 2035, thus smoothing out rate increases over time and avoiding
short-term rate shocks to customers.

Table 2-18: Proposed Financial Plan Scenario

. . . Revenue Debt Dot

Line Fiscal Year Effective Date Adjustments lssuance Procgtlags for
1 FY 2026 January 2026 0.0% $0 $0
2  FY 2027 January 2027 3.0% $0 $0
3 FY 2028 January 2028 3.0% $0 $0
4 | FY 2029 January 2029 3.0% $0 $0
5 FY 2030 January 2030 3.0% $0 $0

PROPOSED CASH FLOW PROJECTIONS

Table 2-19 shows the cash flow projections for the proposed financial plan. Revenues (Lines
1-8) are from Table 2-9, except for revenue adjustments (Line 3) which are calculated based
on the revenue adjustment percentages from Table 2-18. Operating expenses (Lines 10-18)
are from Table 2-11. Net operating revenue (Line 20) is equal to the difference between total
revenues (Line 8) and total expenses (Line 18). Debt service (Lines 22-25) is from Table
2-12. Rate funded CIP (Line 29) is from Table 2-13. The proposed scenario assumes no new
debt; all CIP is expected to be rate funded. Net cash flow (Line 31) is equal to the net
operating revenue (Line 20) less debt service (Line 25) and rate funded CIP (Line 29).

The net cash flow in the proposed scenario is positive for all years (except for FY 2025),
meaning that the District’s current revenues are sufficient to fund its operating expenses, debt
service, and annual CIP.

Water Resources Economics
23

Page 46 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Line Cash Flow Projections
Revenues

Rate Revenues at Existing Rates
Revenue Adjustments

Property Taxes

Cell Tower Lease

Interest Income

Miscellaneous Revenues

©O© o00~NO U WNE

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

Subtotal

Expenses

Payroll Expenses

Facilities, Wells, Transmission & Distribution (T&D)
Office Expenses

Support Services

Other Operating Expenses

Service Tools & Equipment

Non-Operating Expenses

Subtotal

Net Revenue

Debt Service
Existing Debt
Proposed Debt

Subtotal

CIP

Rate Funded

Subtotal

Net Cash Flow

FY 2026

$1,550,855
$0
$253,000
$39,800
$67,600
$172,060
$2,083,315

$788,900
$376,700
$115,900
$148,900
$15,300
$50,000
$4,300
$1,500,000

$583,315
$87,446

$0
$87,446

$350,000
$350,000

$145,869

24

FY 2027

$1,559,385
$19,492
$258,060
$40,596
$82,105
$172,060
$2,131,698

$830,898
$405,512
$121,778
$158,114
$15,912
$52,750
$2,960
$1,587,924

$543,774
$51,550

$0
$51,550

$364,000
$364,000

$128,224

Water Resources Economics

Table 2-19: Projected Cash Flows (Proposed Financial Plan)

FY 2028

$1,567,915
$67,224
$263,221
$41,408
$85,694
$172,060
$2,197,523

$875,149
$436,849
$128,015
$168,022
$16,548
$55,685
$3,022
$1,683,292

$514,231
$21,001

$0
$21,001

$378,560
$378,560

$114,670

FY 2029

$1,576,445
$116,911
$268,486
$42,236
$88,344
$172,060
$2,264,482

$921,775
$470,951
$134,639
$178,685
$17,210
$58,820
$3,087
$1,785,168

$479,314
$21,001

$0
$21,001

$393,702
$393,702

$64,611

FY 2030

$1,584,975
$168,619
$273,855
$43,081
$89,410
$172,060
$2,332,000

$970,905
$508,078
$141,677
$190,169
$17,899
$62,171
$3,155
$1,894,053

$437,947
$21,001

$0
$21,001

$409,450
$409,450

$7,495

Page 47 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

PROPOSED FUND BALANCE PROJECTIONS

Table 2-20 shows the fund balance projections for the proposed financial plan. Based on the sources (revenues) and uses
(operating expenses, debt service, and CIP) of funds, the District’s fund balance is projected to increase to approximately $3

million at the end of the study period.

Table 2-20: Projected Fund Balances (Proposed Financial Plan)

Line Fund Balance Projections FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
1  Beginning Fund Balance $2,567,900 $2,713,769  $2,841,994 $2,956,664 $3,021,275
2
3 Sources of Funds
4 E:{gsRe"e”“eS at Existing $1,550,855 $1,559,385 $1,567,915 $1,576,445  $1,584,975
5 | Revenue Adjustments $0 $19,492 $67,224 $116,911 $168,619
6 Property Taxes $253,000 $258,060 $263,221 $268,486 $273,855
7 | Cell Tower Lease $39,800 $40,596 $41,408 $42,236 $43,081
8 | Interest Income $67,600 $82,105 $85,694 $88,344 $89,410
9 Miscellaneous Revenues $172,060 $172,060 $172,060 $172,060 $172,060
10 | Grant Proceeds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
11 Debt Proceeds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
12 | Subtotal $2,083,315 $2,131,698 $2,197,523 $2,264,482 $2,332,000
13
14 | Uses of Funds
15 Expenses $1,500,000 $1,587,924 $1,683,292 $1,785,168 $1,894,053
16 | Debt Service $87,446 $51,550 $21,001 $21,001 $21,001
17  Grant Funded CIP $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
18  Debt Funded CIP $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
19 Rate Funded CIP $350,000 $364,000 $378,560 $393,702 $409,450
20 | Subtotal $1,937,446 $2,003,474 $2,082,853 $2,199,871 $2,324,505
21
22 | Ending Fund Balance $2,713,769 $2,841,994 $2,956,664 $3,021,275 $3,028,770

Water Resources Economics

25

Page 48 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

PROPOSED FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Table 2-21 shows the forecasted financial performance for the proposed financial plan.
Under this plan, the District will meet its reserve targets and debt coverage requirements in
all years of the study period. Additionally, reserve levels will be built up to help cover
significantly higher anticipated CIP funding requirements beyond the study period from FY
2031 through FY 2035.

Table 2-21: Forecasted Financial Performance (Proposed Financial Plan)

Lén Financial Performance FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
1 | Reserve Policies

2  Operating Reserve $739,726 | $783,086 = $830,117  $880,357  $934,054
3  Capital Reserve $518,428 $518,428 $518,428 $518,428 $518,428
4 Combined Reserves $1,258,15 $1,301,51 $1,348,54 $1,398,78 $1,452,48

Target 4 4 5 5 2

5 Combined Reserves $2,713,7g $2,841,9?1 $2,956,6£31 $3,021,2; $3,028,73
6 | Meets Target? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
=

8 | Debt Coverage Target

9  Required Debt Coverage 185% 185% 185% 185% 185%
10 | Calculated Debt Coverage 667% 1055% 2449% 2282% 2085%
11  Meets Target? Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Figure 2-4 shows the comparison of revenues and the revenue requirements for the
proposed scenario. The stacked bars represent the revenue requirements, or costs. The
current revenue, shown as a solid line, is lower than the revenue requirements starting in FY
2029. The proposed revenue, shown as a dotted line, is greater than the revenue
requirements in all years of the study, meaning that the District’'s revenues are able to
sufficiently fund all expenses.

Figure 2-4: Revenue Requirements vs. Revenues (Proposed Financial Plan)

Revenue Requirement

w
M
n

Millions
3

3%

o

$1.5 -

$1.0
$0.5

$0.0
FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030

O&M Expenses mmmmm Debt Service e Rate Funded CIP Reserve Funding

Current Revenue == == == Proposed Revenue &  Operating Deficit

Water Resources Economics
26

Page 49 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Figure 2-5 shows the debt coverage projections in the proposed financial plan. The required
debt coverage (dashed line) is equal to 185%. The District is expected to meet its debt
coverage requirements for all years under the proposed financial plan.

Figure 2-5: Projected Debt Coverage (Proposed Financial Plan)

Debt Coverage

3000%

2000%
1500%
1055%
1000%
667%
500%
0%
FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
= = == Required Debt Coverage == Calculated Debt Coverage ® Alert Coverage

Figure 2-6 shows the fund balance projections in the proposed financial plan. The District’s
ending balance (green bars) will meet the reserve targets (dashed line) in all years of the
study. The projected build up in reserves to approximately $3 million will help contribute
towards significant ten-year CIP funding needs beyond FY 2030.

Figure 2-6: Projected Fund Balances (Proposed Financial Plan)

Fund Balance

w $3.5
c
=
= $3.0
= ey $3.0M $3.0M $3.0M
$2.5 m $2.7M -
$2.0
$1 5 - - e e - s e -
$1.0
$0.5
$0.0
FY 2025 FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
[ Ending Balance === Reserve Target + Alert Balance

Water Resources Economics
27

Page 50 of 98



3. COST-OF-SERVICE ANALYSIS
3.1 COST-OF-SERVICE METHODOLOGY

A cost-of-service analysis was conducted to allocate the proposed FY 2026 rate revenue
requirement to customers in proportion to use of and burden on the District's water system.
The overall goal of the cost-of-service analysis is to develop “unit costs,” which provide the
basis from which proposed rates are directly calculated from. Note that although the study
period spans five years, the cost-of-service analysis is limited to a single representative year
referred to as the “test year.” The test year in this study is FY 2026.

The cost-of-service analysis is “revenue neutral,” meaning that the resulting cost-of-service
based rates collect the same amount of revenue as the District expects to collect in FY 2026.
The revenue neutral unit costs determine revenue neutral rates, which are then adjusted
based on the proposed financial plan revenue adjustments to arrive at the proposed water
rates for five years. All values presented in this section pertain to FY 2026 and are revenue
neutral unless stated otherwise.

The key steps in conducting a water cost-of-service analysis are outlined below:

e Revenue requirement determination: The total rate revenue requirement for the test
year is determined based on the results of the proposed financial plan and divided into
primary sub-components (operating, capital, etc.).

e Cost functionalization: Operating and capital costs are evaluated and assigned to
“functional categories” in the water system (e.g., customer service, groundwater wells,
distribution, etc.). This provides a proportional breakdown of system costs by
functional category.

e Revenue requirement allocation to cost causation components: Functionalized
costs are allocated to “cost causation components” (e.g., water supply, base delivery,
max day delivery, etc.), which is used to attribute customers’ use of the system to the
District’s incursion of costs.

e Unit cost development: The rate revenue requirement allocation for each individual
cost causation component is divided by the appropriate units of service to establish
unit costs for the test year. Unit costs provide the basis from which proposed rates are
calculated.

3.2 REVENUE REQUIREMENT
REVENUE REQUIREMENT DETERMINATION

The total rate revenue requirement for the test year, FY 2026, is based on the financial plan
projections (Table 2-19) and is allocated between the Operating, Capital, and Revenue
Offset components, as shown in Table 3-1. The Operating revenue requirement consists of
operating expenses (Line 2). The Capital revenue requirement includes debt service (Line 3),
rate funded CIP (Line 4), and cash to/ (from) reserves (Line 15; from Table 2-19, Line 31).
The Revenue Offset revenue requirement reduces the overall revenue requirement by the

Water Resources Economics
28

Page 51 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

non-rate revenues (Lines 8-11; from Table 2-19, Lines 4-7). The total revenue requirement
(Line 19) is equal to the amount of rate revenue collected in FY 2026 (Table 2-19, Line 2).

Line FY 2026 Revenue Requirement

Table 3-1: FY 2026 Revenue Requirement
Rev. Offset

Operating

Capital

Revenue Requirements

2  Operating Expenses $1,500,000 $0 $0  $1,500,000

3  Debt Service $0 $87,446 $0 $87,446

4 Rate Funded CIP $0 $350,000 $0 $350,000

5 Subtotal $1,500,000 $437,446 $0  $1,937,446

6

7  Revenue Offsets

8 | Property Taxes $0 $0 ($253,000) ($253,000)

9  Cell Tower Lease $0 $0 ($39,800) ($39,800)

10 | Interest Income $0 $0 ($67,600) ($67,600)

11  Miscellaneous Revenues $0 $0  ($172,060) ($172,060)

12 Subtotal $0 $0  ($532,460)  ($532,460)

13

14  Adjustments

15 Cash to/ (from) Reserves $0 $145,869 $0 $145,869
Revenue Adjustment

16 Annualization $0 $0 $0 $0

17  Subtotal $0 $145,869 $0 $145,869

18

19 Total - Revenue Requirement $1,500,000 $583,315 ($532,460)  $1,550,855

3.3 COST FUNCTIONALIZATION
FUNCTIONAL CATEGORY DEFINITIONS

After determining the revenue requirement, the next step in the cost-of-service analysis is to
allocate the District’s costs into various functional categories. These categories represent the
main functions of the District’'s water system and include:

Meters: costs of meter maintenance and replacement

Customer: costs related to customer service and billing

Fire: costs related to providing fire protection services

Wells: costs related to groundwater wells

Treatment: costs related to the treatment of water to potable standards

Storage: costs related to water storage facilities (such as reservoirs and tanks)

Distribution: costs related to the distribution of water to customers

Revenue Offset: miscellaneous revenues that are not generated by specific customer

classes or for payment of services provided by the District; these revenues can be

used to offset rates at the District’s discretion under Proposition 218 requirements
¢ General: costs that are not directly attributable to any other functional category

OPERATING COST FUNCTIONALIZATION

WRE worked closely with District staff to evaluate and allocate the operating expenses for FY
2026 (from Table 2-11) to the most closely associated functional categories within the water

Water Resources Economics
29

Page 52 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

system, as shown in Table 3-2. The detailed allocation of the operating expense budget to
the functional categories is included in the Appendix (Table 5-3).

Table 3-2: Operating Costs by System Functions

Line Cost Functions OPEIET FERHEENL E]
Expenses Total
1 Meters $1,000 0.1%
2 Customer $87,407 5.8%
3  Fire $0 0.0%
4 | Wells $381,828 25.5%
5 | Treatment $104,328 7.0%
6 | Storage $4,500 0.3%
7 Distribution $255,656 17.0%
8 Revenue Offset $0 0.0%
9  General $665,280 44.4%
10 Total $1,500,000 100.0%

CAPITAL ASSET FUNCTIONALIZATION

WRE worked with District staff to evaluate and allocate the District’s current capital assets to
the most closely associated functional categories within the water system, as shown in Table
3-3. The detailed allocation of the current capital assets to the functional categories is
included in the Appendix (Table 5-4).

It is standard practice in most water cost-of-service studies to functionalize current capital
assets rather than planned CIP costs, since the latter can fluctuate more significantly from
year to year. The current capital asset base provides a more stable representation of long-
term capital needs and their associated costs. The asset valuation methodology used in the
study is Replacement Cost (RC) which takes inflation into account. Note that land assets are
excluded from the totals shown in Table 3-3.

Table 3-3: Capital Assets by System Functions

: . Capital Percent of
Line Cost Functions Assets (RC Total

1 Meters $200,565 0.7%
2 | Customer $45,037 0.2%
3  Fire $0 0.0%
4 | Wells $2,266,054 8.3%
5 | Treatment $53,881 0.2%
6 | Storage $1,380,193 5.0%
7 Distribution $22,757,575 82.9%
8 Revenue Offset $0 0.0%
9  General $732,300 2.7%
10 | Total $27,435,605 100.0%

Water Resources Economics

30

Page 53 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

REVENUE OFFSET FUNCTIONALIZATION
Table 3-4 shows the revenue offsets allocated by functional categories. All revenue offsets
are simply allocated to the revenue offset function.

Table 3-4: Revenue Offsets by System Functions

Line Cost Functions  ovenue Percent of

Offsets Total
1  Meters $0 0.0%
2 Customer $0 0.0%
3  Fire $0 0.0%
4 | Wells $0 0.0%
5  Treatment $0 0.0%
6  Storage $0 0.0%
7  Distribution $0 0.0%
8 Revenue Offset $532,460 100.0%
9  General $0 0.0%
10 Total $532,460 100.0%

3.4 COST CAUSATION COMPONENTS
COST COMPONENT DEFINITIONS

While the functional categories represent the costs of system functions, cost causation
components represent the reasons for why and how costs are incurred within the system
(thus, cost causation). Cost causation components will be referred to as cost components in
this report. The next step of the cost-of-service analysis is to allocate the Operating, Capital,
and Revenue Offsets by functional category to each cost component. Most cost components
directly correspond to a single functional category.

The cost components in this study include the following:

Meter: directly corresponds to the Meter functional category

Customer: directly corresponds to the Customer functional category

Fire: directly corresponds to the Fire functional category

Average Day Demand (Base): costs associated with delivering water to customers

during average water demand conditions (average daily use)

¢ Maximum Day Demand (Max Day): costs associated with delivering water to
customers during maximum day demand conditions (water usage during highest day
of year)

e Maximum Hour Demand (Max Hour): costs associated with delivering water to
customer during maximum hour demand conditions (water usage during highest hour
of highest day)

e Revenue Offset: directly corresponds to the Revenue Offset functional category

e General: directly corresponds to the General functional category

Water Resources Economics
31

Page 54 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

SYSTEM-WIDE CAPACITY FACTORS

System-wide capacity factors for the District's water system, shown in Table 3-6 are used to
allocate costs associated with the Wells, Treatment, Storage, and Distribution functional
categories to the Base, Max Day, and Max Hour cost components. Capacity factors represent
the ratio of maximum to average water demand over the course of one year for the entire
system. This provides a basis to identify costs incurred to provide water service during
average demand conditions and to provide additional capacity during peak demand
conditions.

The assumptions used to calculate the capacity factors are shown in Table 3-5. District staff
provided system-wide average day demand and max day demand in mgd (million gallons per
day). The average day, maximum day, and maximum hour demand capacity factors are
normalized based on average day demand (meaning that the average day demand is equal
to 1.00). The max day demand capacity factor (Table 3-6, Line 2) is calculated by dividing
max day demand in line 2 by average day demand in Line 1. The max hour capacity factor
(Table 3-6, Line 3) is estimated by multiplying the max day demand capacity factor (Table
3-6, Line 2) by an industry standard ratio of max hour to max day demand of 1.50 (Line 3).

Table 3-5: Capacity Factor Assumptions
Capacity Factor

Line . Value
Assumptions
1  Average Day Demand (mgd) 0.27
2 | Max Day Demand (mgd) 0.41
3 Max Hour to Max Day 1.50
Demand

The percentage allocations to the Base, Max Day, and Max Hour cost components based on
the average day, maximum day, and maximum demand capacity factors are calculated as
follows:

e Average day demand is allocated entirely to Base
e Max day demand is allocated proportionately to Base® and Max Day®
e Max hour demand is allocated proportionately to Base’, Max Day?, and Max Hour®

Table 3-6: System-Wide Capacity Allocation

Line System-Wide Capacity Cég;(g':y Base Max Day Max Hour Total
1  Average Day Demand 1.00 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%
2 Max Day Demand 1.50 66.7% 33.3% 0.0% 100.0%

51.00/1.50 = 66.7%
6 (1.50-1.00)/1.50 = 33.3%
71.00/2.25 = 44.4%
§ (1.50-1.00)/2.25 = 22.2%
9 (2.25-1.50)/2.25 = 33.3%

Water Resources Economics
32

Page 55 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

3 Max Hour Demand 2.25 44.4% 22.2% 33.3% 100.0%

Water Resources Economics
33

Page 56 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

COST COMPONENT ALLOCATION FACTORS

Table 3-7 shows the factors used to allocate the functionalized costs to the cost components. For the cost components that
directly correlate to a functional category (Meter, Customer, Fire, Revenue Offset, and General), the functionalized costs are
allocated entirely to the corresponding cost component. Wells, Treatment, and Storage facilities (Lines 4-6) are sized based on
maximum day demand and are allocated based on the Max Day capacity factor (Table 3-6, Line 2). Distribution facilities (Line 7)
are sized based on maximum hour demand and are allocated based on the Max Hour capacity factor (Table 3-6, Line 3).

Line

© 00o~NOOOLA~WNPE

Cost Functions

Meters
Customer

Fire

Wells
Treatment
Storage
Distribution
Revenue Offset
General

Table 3-7: System Function Allocation to Cost Components

Meter
100%

Cust-
omer

100%

Fire Base
100%
67%
67%
67%
44%

Max Day

33%
33%
33%
22%

Water Resources Economics

34

Max
Hour

33%

Rev.
Offset

100%

General Total

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100% 100%

Page 57 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

OPERATING COST COMPONENT ALLOCATION

Table 3-8 shows the operating cost allocation by cost component. The functionalized operating expenses from Table 3-2 are
allocated based on the cost component allocation factors in Table 3-7. The operating allocation (Line 11) is derived from the
total operating expenses by cost component (Line 10) and represents the proportion of the Operating revenue requirement that
will be allocated to each cost component.

Table 3-8: Operating Allocation by Cost Component

Max Rev.

Line Operating Expenses Meter Customer Base Max Day H General Total
our Offset
1 Meters $1,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,000
2 Customer $0 $87,407 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $87,407
3 Fire $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
4 Wells $0 $0 $0 | $254,552  $127,276 $0 $0 $0 $381,828
5 Treatment $0 $0 $0 $69,552 $34,776 $0 $0 $0 $104,328
6 Storage $0 $0 $0 $3,000 $1,500 $0 $0 $0 $4,500
7 Distribution $0 $0 $0 $113,625 $56,812 $85,219 $0 $0 $255,656
8 Revenue Offset $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
9 General $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $665,280 $665,280
10 | Total - Operating Expenses $1,000 $87,407 $0 = $440,729 | $220,365 $85,219 $0 $665,280 | $1,500,000
11 Operating Cost Allocation 0.1% 5.8% 0.0% 29.4% 14.7% 5.7% 0.0% 44.4% 100.0%

Water Resources Economics
35

Page 58 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

CAPITAL COST COMPONENT ALLOCATION

Table 3-9 shows the capital cost allocation by cost component. The functionalized capital assets from Table 3-3 are allocated
based on the cost component allocation factors in Table 3-7. The capital allocation (Line 11) is derived from the total capital
asset value by cost component (Line 10) and represents the proportion of the Capital revenue requirement that will be allocated
to each cost component.

Table 3-9: Capital Allocation by Cost Component

Line Capital Assets (RC) Meter Customer Max Day Max Hour ORffesvét General
1 Meters $200,565 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $200,565
2 Customer $0 $45,037 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $45,037
3 Fire $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
4 Wells $0 $0 $0 $1,510,702 $755,351 $0 $0 $0 $2,266,054
5 Treatment $0 $0 $0 $35,921 $17,960 $0 $0 $0 $53,881
6 Storage $0 $0 $0 $920,129 $460,064 $0 $0 $0 $1,380,193
7 Distribution $0 $0 $0 $10,114,478 $5,057,239 $7,585,858 $0 $0 $22,757,575
8 Revenue Offset $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
9 General $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $732,300 $732,300
10 | Total - Capital Assets $200,565 $45,037 $0 | $12,581,230 @ $6,290,615 $7,585,858 $0 $732,300 $27,435,605
11 Capital Cost Allocation 0.7% 0.2% 0.0% 45.9% 22.9% 27.6% 0.0% 2.7% 100.0%

Water Resources Economics
36

Page 59 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

REVENUE OFFSET COST COMPONENT ALLOCATION

Table 3-10 shows the allocation of revenue offsets to each cost component. The functionalized revenue offsets from Table 3-4
are allocated based on the cost component allocation factors in Table 3-7. All revenue offsets are allocated to the Revenue
Offset cost component.

Table 3-10: Revenue Offset Allocation by Cost Component

Max Max Rev.

Line Revenue Offsets Meter  Customer Fire Base General Total
Day Hour Offset
1  Meters $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
2  Customer $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
3  Fire $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
4 | Wells $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
5  Treatment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
6  Storage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
7  Distribution $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
8  Revenue Offset $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($532,460) $0 | ($532,460)
9  General $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
10 Total - Revenue Offsets $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($532,460) $0 ($532,460)

Water Resources Economics
37

Page 60 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

3.5 SYSTEM CAPACITY ALLOCATIONS

The costs for certain system functions are based on the capacity requirements related to that
function. For example, meter-related costs are allocated based on meter capacity, which is
defined by the safe maximum operating capacity of each meter size. This section describes
and defines capacity requirements and allocations relating to water meters, private fire lines,
customer water usage, and fire protection.

EQUIVALENT METER UNITS

Costs related to meter capacity increase based on meter size. Therefore, equivalent meter
units are calculated to provide a basis from which to allocate costs in proportion to meter
size. Equivalent meter calculations are shown in Table 3-11.

Equivalent meters are calculated based on meter capacity ratios, which represent the safe
operating capacity of a water meter relative to the base meter size. For this study, the base
meter size is a 5/8-inch meter, which is the most common meter size in the District’s system.
Capacity in gallons per minute (gpm) is derived from the AWWA M1 Manual. The meter ratio
for a 1.5-inch meter is 5.00, which means that the capacity of a 1.5-inch meter is five times
that of a 5/8-inch meter.

The number of meters in each meter size is from Table 2-4. Equivalent meters are calculated
by multiplying the meter counts by the meter ratio for each size.

Table 3-11: Equivalent Meter Units

Safe
. . Operating Meter Total T_otal
Line Meter Size ; . Meter Equivalent
Sl RELE Counts Meters
(gpm)
1 5/8-inch meter 20 1.00 881 881
2 3/4-inch meter 30 1.50 28 43
3 1-inch meter 50 2.50 14 35
4 1 1/2-inch meter 100 5.00 4 21
5 2-inch meter 160 8.00 18 147
6 3-inch meter 320 16.00 3 53
7 4-inch meter 500 25.00 1 25
8 6-inch meter 1,000 50.00 0 0
9 8-inch meter 1,600 80.00 0 0
10 | 10-inch meter 4,200 210.00 1 210
11 Construction (3-inch meter) 320 16.00 2 28
12 | Total 953 1,443

Water Resources Economics
38

Page 61 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

EQUIVALENT FIRE LINES

Costs related to fire protection capacity increase exponentially based on fire line diameter
and are attributable to both public fire hydrants and private fire connections. Therefore,
equivalent fire lines are calculated to provide a basis from which to allocate costs in
proportion to fire line size, and between public and private fire connections. Equivalent fire
line calculations are shown in Table 3-12; private fire line counts are from Table 2-5 and
public fire line counts were provided by District staff.

The capacity of a fire line is based on the diameter of the connection and is equal to the
connection diameter in inches raised to power of 2.63 based on the Hazen-Williams equation
in the AWWA M1 Manual. The fire line ratio is the fire capacity of each diameter size divided
by the base fire line, which is a 4-inch diameter. Equivalent fire lines are calculated by
multiplying the fire line ratio of each diameter size by the number of connections by size.

The concept of equivalent fire lines provides a basis from which to compare the capacity
requirements of both private fire protection and public hydrants. The fire protection capacity
attributed to private fire connections is equal to 4%; the remaining 96% is attributed to public
fire hydrants (Line 5).

Table 3-12: Equivalent Fire Lines

. Fire Line Fire Fire I?rivqte Public Privgte Fire Pub!ic Fire
Line Size Dem-and Demgnd Fire Line Fire Line Equwglent Equwglent
Units Ratio Counts Counts Fire Lines Fire Lines
1  4-inch 38 1.00 0 0 0 0
2 6-inch 111 2.90 2 113 6 328
3  8-inch 237 6.19 1 0 6 0
4 | Total 3 113 12 328
5 Percent of Total 3% 97% 4% 96%

CUSTOMER DEMAND AND FIRE CAPACITY

Cost-of-service allocations are typically based on system-wide capacity (which is the
combination of customer demand and fire protection). However, Max Day and Max Hour cost
components are further allocated between customer demand and fire protection based on
their proportional share of required capacity within the water system.

Table 3-13 shows the customer demand capacity calculations for Max Day and Max Hour.
The system-wide Max Day capacity factor is from Table 3-6. Max Month capacity factor data
is typically used as a proxy for Max Day capacity factors in lieu of daily water use data for all
customers. Max Hour capacity is equal to Max Day capacity increased by the ratio of system-
wide Max Hour to system-wide Max Day (Table 3-6). The annual use for each customer
class and tier is from Table 2-7. The daily use is equal to the annual use divided by 365 days.

Max Day demand is calculated by multiplying the daily use in hcf by the Max Day capacity
factor for each customer class and tier. Max Day extra capacity is equal to Max Day demand
less daily use. Similarly, Max Hour demand is calculated by multiplying the daily use in hcf by

Water Resources Economics
39

Page 62 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

the Max Hour capacity factor for each customer class and tier. Max Hour extra capacity is
equal to the Max Hour demand less Max Day demand.

The total Max Day and Max Hour extra capacity (Line 5) represents the capacity required to
meet customer demand that will be used to allocate Max Day and Max Hour costs between
public fire hydrant capacity, private fire line capacity, and customer demand capacity.

Table 3-13: Customer Demand Capacity

Max Max Max Max

DEVY, Da DEY Hour
Capa- y Extra Capa-

city city
Factor i Factor

Customer Annual Daily

Class Use Use

1 Single Family Residential

2 Tier 1 54,736 150 1.50 225 75 2.25 337 112

3 Tier 2 33,067 91 1.50 136 45 2.25 204 68
Non-

4 Residentia 86,437 237 1.50 355 118 2.25 533 178
|

5 Total 174,240 477 716 239 1,074 358

Table 3-14 shows the calculation of fire capacity requirements in the District’'s system and the
capacity allocation between fire and customer demand. The extra capacity required for fire is
based on assumed fire flow requirements of 1,000 gpm for one hour. The fire capacity is
allocated between public hydrants (Line 6) and private fire (Line 7) using the proportion of
equivalent fire lines attributed to each service (Table 3-12).

The customer demand (Table 3-13), public hydrant, and private fire extra capacity (Lines 5-7)
are added together to form the total capacity requirements of the system within the Max Day
and Max Hour cost components. From there, the capacity allocation factors (Lines 10-12) are
calculated based on the proportion of the total capacity requirements related to each service.
These allocations are used in a later section of the report to reallocate Max Day and Max
Hour costs.

Water Resources Economics
40

Page 63 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Table 3-14: Capacity Allocation by Fire and Customer Demand

Line Capacity Allocation

Hours for Fire
Capacity for Fire

(gpm)
Fire Extra Capacity

Customer Demand
Public Hydrants
Private Fire

Total

Customer Demand
Public Hydrants
Private Fire

Total

Max Day
1

1,000
80

239
77

319

75%
24%
1%
100%

Water Resources Economics

41

Max Hour
1

1,000
1,845

358
1,780
65
2,203

16%
81%
3%
100%

Page 64 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

3.6 ALLOCATION TO COST COMPONENTS
PRELIMINARY COST-OF-SERVICE ALLOCATION AND GENERAL REALLOCATION

Table 3-15 shows the preliminary cost-of-service allocation prior to any adjustments and the adjusted cost-of-service allocations
after the General cost reallocation. The Operating costs (Line 1) are equal to the total Operating revenue requirements (Table
3-1, Line 19) allocated to each cost component based on the Operating allocation (Table 3-8, Line 11). The Capital costs (Line
2) are equal to the total Capital revenue requirements (Table 3-1, Line 19) allocated to each cost component based on the
Capital allocation (Table 3-9, Line 11). The Revenue Offsets (Line 3) are equal to the total Revenue Offset requirements (Table
3-1, Line 19) and are allocated based on the Revenue Offset allocation (Table 3-10, Line 10). Note that the total cost-of-service
(Line 4) is equal to the total rate revenue requirement for FY 2026 (Table 3-1, Line 19).

The next step is to reallocate General costs (Line 5) in proportion to the preliminary allocation to each cost component, excluding
Customer (which is restricted to billing and customer service costs) and Revenue Offset (which pertains only to revenues). The
total revenue requirement (Line 6) remains unchanged after the General cost reallocation.

Table 3-15: Cost-of-Service Allocation by Cost Component (Preliminary, General)

Line Revenue Requirement Meter Customer |_I\|/Iax REY. General Total
our Offset
1 Operating Costs $1,000 $87,407 $0 $440,729 $220,365 $85,219 $0 $665,280 $1,500,000
2 Capital Costs $4,264 $958 $0 $267,493 | $133,746 $161,285 $0 $15,570 $583,315
3  Revenue Offsets $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($532,460) $0 | ($532,460)
4 Preliminary Allocation $5,264 $88,365 $0 $708,222 $354,111 @ $246,504 ($532,460) $680,850 = $1,550,855
5 General Cost Allocation $2,727 N/A $0 $366,937 $183,469 $127,716 N/A @ ($680,850) $0
6 Adjusted for General $7,992 $88,365 $0 $1,075,159 @ $537,580 $374,220 @ ($532,460) $0 = $1,550,855

FIRE PROTECTION AND CAPACITY REALLOCATION

Table 3-16 shows the cost-of-service allocation to each cost component after reallocating fire protection and capacity-related
costs. The cost-of-service allocations after reallocation of General costs (Line 1) is from Table 3-15.

Public Fire costs (Line 2) within the Max Day and Max Hour components are reallocated based on the proportion of capacity
related to public fire protection (Table 3-14, Line 11). All Public Fire costs are reallocated to the Meter component, since public
fire protection is a safety benefit shared by all District customers.

Private Fire costs (Line 3) are reallocated from Max Day and Max Hour to the Fire cost component based on the proportion of
capacity related to private fire service (Table 3-14, Line 12).

Water Resources Economics
42

Page 65 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Finally, the capacity reallocation (Line 5) reallocates 15% of Max Day and Max Hour costs to the Meter component. This
reallocation is necessary to maintain the same percentage of fixed revenue recovery (40% fixed revenues to 60% variable
revenues), which will maintain current levels of revenue stability provided by current rates.

Table 3-16: Cost-of-Service Allocation by Cost Component (Fire Protection, Capacity)

Line Revenue Requirement

Meter

Customer

Max Hour

Rev.
Offset

Adjusted for General
Public Fire Allocation
Private Fire Allocation
Adjusted for Fire
Reallocation to Meter
Adjusted for Capacity

1
2
3
4
5
6

$7,992
$432,798
$0
$440,790

$69,477
$510,267

$88,365
$0
$0
$88,365
$0
$88,365

Fire Max Day
$0 $1,075,159 $537,580
$0 $0 | ($130,451)
$15,822 $0 ($4,769)
$15,822 | $1,075,159 $402,360

$0 $0 ($60,354)
$15,822 | $1,075,159 $342,006

Water Resources Economics
43

$374,220
($302,348)
($11,053)
$60,819
($9,123)
$51,696

($532,460)
$0
$0

($532,460)
$0

($532,460)

General Total
$0 $1,550,855
$0 $0
$0 $0
$0 = $1,550,855
$0 $0

$0 | $1,550,855

Page 66 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

FINAL COST-OF-SERVICE ALLOCATION

Table 3-17 shows the final cost-of-service allocation based on the adjustments for General,
Fire, and Capacity from the prior report tables. The Fire component, after removing costs
related to public fire protection, now represents Private Fire costs and is renamed in the
following table. The Max Day and Max Hour components now represent the capacity
requirements of customer water demand only and do not include costs related to public or
private fire protection capacity.

Table 3-17: Cost-of-Service Allocation by Cost Component (Final)

Final Cost

Line Cost Components Allocation

1 Meter $510,267
2 | Customer $88,365
3  Private Fire $15,822
4 | Base $1,075,159
5  Max Day $342,006
6 Max Hour $51,696
7 Rev. Offset ($532,460)
8 Total $1,550,855

3.7 UNIT COST CALCULATION
UNITS OF SERVICE DEFINITIONS

The appropriate units of service are then established for each cost component based on cost
causation, which is shown in Table 3-18. Cost components to be recovered by the fixed
charges are assigned units of service based on the number of equivalent meters (from Table
3-11), customers (sum of meter counts and private fire line counts from Table 3-11 and
Table 3-12), and equivalent fire lines (Table 3-12). Cost components to be recovered by the
commodity charges are assigned units based on annual usage in hcf or extra capacity for
Max Day or Max Hour (from Table 3-13).

Table 3-18: Units of Service Definitions

Cost . . o Units of

Components Units of Service Definition Service

Meter Equivalent meters x 12 mo. 17,320 EMUs/ year
5 Customer mgter and private fire counts x 12 11,472  bills/ year
3  Fire Equivalent private fire lines x 12 mo. 144 EFL/ year
4 | Base Annual usage in hcf 174,240 hcf/ year
5  Max Day Max Day extra capacity 239 hcf/ day
6 | Max Hour Max Hour extra capacity 358 | hcf/ day
7 | Rev. Offset Annual usage in hcf 174,240 hcf/ year

Water Resources Economics
44

Page 67 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

UNIT COST BY COST COMPONENT

Table 3-19 shows the calculation of unit costs by each cost component. The final cost-of-
service allocation (Table 3-17) is divided by the units of service (Table 3-18) for each cost
component to derive the unit cost. These unit costs will determine the cost-of-service by

customer class.

Table 3-19: Unit Cost by Cost Component

Unit Cost

Meter

Customer

1

2

3 Fire
4 Base
5

6

7

Max Day
Max Hour
Rev. Offset

Final Cost Units of

Allocation Service
$510,267 17,320
$88,365 11,472
$15,822 144
$1,075,159 174,240
$342,006 239
$51,696 358
($532,460) 174,240

Water Resources Economics
45

$29.46 per EMU
$7.70 per bill
$109.88 per EFL
$6.17 per hcf
$1,432.88 per hcf/day
$144.39 per hcf/day
($3.06) per hcf

Page 68 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

3.8 COST-OF-SERVICE BY CUSTOMER CLASS

The final step in the cost-of-service analysis is to determine the cost to serve each customer class, which is shown in Table
3-20. The unit cost by cost component (Table 3-19) is multiplied by the units of service for each customer class to determine the
cost to serve each class. Note that the total cost-of-service is equal to the total rate revenue requirement for FY 2026 (Table 3-1,
Line 19).

Table 3-20: Cost-of-Service Allocation by Cost Component and Customer Class

Revenue Requirement

Max Rev.
Hour Offset

Allocation by Class MIEET SIS SENS \EVEL:Y

1  Single Family Residential $328,000 $83,073 ($268,316) $142,757
2 Tier 1 $337,752  $107,438 $16,240 $461,431
3 Tier 2 $204,040 $64,905 $9,811 $278,755
4 Non-Residential $182,267 $5,014 $533,367  $169,663 $25,646 ($264,144) $651,813
5  Private Fire Lines $277  $15,822 $16,099
6 Total $510,267 $88,365 $15,822 $1,075,159 $342,006 $51,696 ($532,460) $1,550,855

Water Resources Economics
46

Page 69 of 98



4. WATER RATES

4.1 RATE DESIGN METHODOLOGY

A five-year proposed water rate schedule was developed based on the results of the
proposed financial plan and cost-of-service analysis. The key steps in developing the
proposed rate schedule are outlined below:

e Rate structure evaluation: The existing rate structure is evaluated, and any proposed
changes are identified. Proposed rate structure changes are typically intended to
address specific policy objectives or to improve legal defensibility.

e Test year rate development: Rates are calculated for the proposed rate structure for
the cost-of-service test year (FY 2026). Rate calculations directly incorporate the unit
costs developed in the cost-of-service analysis. The test year rates are revenue
neutral, then are increased based on the proposed financial plan revenue adjustments.
Although total rate revenues in the first year of adjustments (FY 2026) are designed to
increase by the proposed revenue adjustment percentage, the proposed percentage
increase to each rate/charge varies due to the updated cost-of-service allocations.

e Five-year rate schedule development: Proposed rates for the full five-year period
are calculated by increasing the cost-of-service rates by the proposed annual revenue
adjustment percentages from the proposed financial plan.

4.2 PROPOSED CHANGES TO RATE STRUCTURE

The District’s current rate structure includes a monthly fixed service charge, a monthly fixed
fire service charge, three-tiered commodity charges for Single Family Residential, and
uniform commaodity charges for Non-Residential customers. We propose the following two
key changes to the current rate structure:

e Fixed service charges for 6-inch and 8-inch meters: The District’s current rate
schedule does not include fixed service charges for 6-inch or 8-inch meters, as no
current customers have meters of either size. Because there is a possibility that future
connections will require a 6-inch or 8-inch meter, we recommend adding fixed service
charges for these meter sizes to the proposed rate schedule.

e Two-tiered Single Family Residential commodity charges: WRE recommends
reducing the number of tiers for the Single Family commodity charge from three to two
tiers. This recommended change will result in a rate structure more closely aligned
with evolving interpretations of Proposition 218 legal requirements. The proposed tier
1 allotment will remain unchanged at 7 hcf per month. Proposed tier 2 will include all
monthly water use above 7 hcf.

4.3 PROPOSED MONTHLY FIXED SERVICE CHARGES
REVENUE NEUTRAL CHARGES

Table 4-1 shows the revenue neutral monthly fixed service charge calculations. The Meter
and Customer unit costs are from Table 3-19 (Lines 1-2). Meter unit costs are multiplied by

Water Resources Economics
47

Page 70 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

the meter capacity ratio; Customer costs do not vary based on meter size and thus are the
same for all meter sizes. The revenue neutral charge represents the cost-of-service analysis
for FY 2026 but does not include any proposed revenue adjustments.

Table 4-1: Revenue Neutral Monthly Fixed Service Charges

_ _ Meter Number Revenue
Line Meter Size : of Meter Customer Neutral
Ratio

Accounts Charge
1 5/8-inch meter 1.00 881 $29.46 $7.70 $37.17
2 3/4-inch meter 1.50 28 $44.19 $7.70 $51.90
3 1-inch meter 2.50 14 $73.65 $7.70 $81.36
4 1 1/2-inch meter 5.00 4 $147.31 $7.70 $155.02
5 2-inch meter 8.00 18 $235.70 $7.70 $243.40
6 3-inch meter 16.00 3 $471.39 $7.70 $479.10
7 4-inch meter 25.00 1 $736.55 $7.70 $744.26
8 6-inch meter 50.00 0 $1,473.10 $7.70 $1,480.81
9 8-inch meter 80.00 0 $2,356.96 $7.70 $2,364.67
10 | 10-inch meter 210.00 1 $6,187.02 $7.70 $6,194.72
11  Construction (3-inch meter) 16.00 2 $471.39 $7.70 $479.10

PROPOSED CHARGES WITH ADJUSTMENT

Table 4-2 shows the proposed monthly fixed service charges for FY 2026 compared to
current charges. Because the proposed revenue adjustment in FY 2026 is 0% (per Table
2-18), the proposed FY 2026 charges simply equal the revenue neutral charges (from Table
4-1).

Table 4-2: Proposed Monthly Fixed Service Charges after Adjustment

Proposed : :
Line Meter Size EY 2026 %l;]rrent lefe;ence D|ffe0;ence
Charge arge (%) (%)
1  5/8-inch meter $37.17 $37.53 ($0.36) -1.0%
2  3/4-inch meter $51.90 $53.21 ($1.31) -2.5%
3 1-inch meter $81.36 $84.56 ($3.20) -3.8%
4 1 1/2-inch meter $155.02 $162.94 ($7.92) -4.9%
5 2-inch meter $243.40 $257.01 ($13.61) -5.3%
6  3-inch meter $479.10 $507.84 ($28.74) -5.7%
7  4-inch meter $744.26 $790.02 ($45.76) -5.8%
8 6-inch meter $1,480.81 N/A N/A N/A
9  8-inch meter $2,364.67 N/A N/A N/A
10  10-inch meter $6,194.72 $6,590.45 ($395.73) -6.0%
11  Construction (3-inch meter) $479.10 $532.61 ($53.51) -10.0%

4.4 PROPOSED MONTHLY FIXED FIRE SERVICE CHARGES
REVENUE NEUTRAL CHARGES

Table 4-3 shows the revenue neutral monthly fixed fire service charge calculations. The
Private Fire and Customer unit costs are from Table 3-19 (Lines 2-3). Private Fire unit costs
are multiplied by the fire line ratio; Customer costs do not vary based on fire line size and

Water Resources Economics
48

Page 71 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

thus are the same for all sizes. The revenue neutral rate represents the cost-of-service
analysis for FY 2026 but does not include any proposed revenue adjustments.

Table 4-3: Revenue Neutral Monthly Fixed Fire Service Charges

. . . . Fire Line Number of R
Line Fire Line Size Ratio Accounts Customer N
Charge
1  4-inch connection 1.00 0 $109.88 $7.70 $117.58
2 | 6-inch connection 2.90 2 $319.17 $7.70 $326.88
3 8-inch connection 6.19 1 $680.17 $7.70 $687.87

PROPOSED CHARGES WITH ADJUSTMENT

Table 4-4 shows the proposed monthly fixed fire service charges for FY 2026 compared to
current charges. Because the proposed revenue adjustment in FY 2026 is 0% (per Table
2-18), the proposed FY 2026 charges simply equal the revenue neutral charges (from Table
4-3). More significant increases to fixed fire service charges are due to the utilization of
updated rate-setting methodology in this study based on AWWA guidance.

Table 4-4: Proposed Monthly Fixed Fire Service Charges after Adjustment

Line Fire Line Size zg%%oéﬁgrgz gﬁg%net Difference (3) lefg)%e)nce
1 4-inch connection $117.58 $38.33 $79.25 206.8%
2 6-inch connection $326.88 $79.67 $247.21 310.3%
3 8-inch connection $687.87 $134.79 $553.08 410.3%

4.5 PROPOSED COMMODITY CHARGES

The commodity charge calculations include the Base, Capacity, and Revenue Offset
components, which are detailed in this section.

BASE COST

The Base unit cost of $6.17 per hcf is from Table 3-19 (Line 4) and is charged to all customer
classes and tiers equally

CAPACITY COST

Table 4-5 shows the combined Capacity unit cost by customer class and tier. The total
Capacity costs are the sum of Max Day and Max Hour costs (Table 3-20). The Capacity unit
cost is calculated by dividing the total Capacity costs by the annual usage in hcf for each
customer class and tier.

Table 4-5: Capacity Unit Cost by Customer Class

Line Customer Class =L Max Day = Max Hour Total Cost Capamty
hcf Unit Cost

1  Single Family Residential
2 Tier 1 (0-7 hcf) 54,736  $107,438 $16,240  $123,678 $2.26

Water Resources Economics
49

Page 72 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

3 Tier 2 (7+ hcf) 33,067 $64,905 $9,811 $74,715 $2.26
4 | Non-Residential 86,437 $169,663 $25,646 = $195,309 $2.26
5 Total 174,240 $342,006 $51,696 $393,702

REVENUE OFFSET

Table 4-6 shows the Revenue Offset by customer class and tier. The District has discretion
to use these revenues to offset the cost of water; all customer classes benefit from the
Revenue Offsets equally, which are allocated based on usage in each customer class.

Within the Single Family Residential class, Tier 1 receives the full Revenue Offset. This
allocation within the Single Family Residential class is to lower the cost of water for essential
indoor water use for basic health and safety.

Table 4-6: Revenue Offset by Customer Class

_ Usage Allocated Allocated Rev Rev.
Line Customer Class (hcf) to Rev. Usage Offsét Offset

Offset hcf Unit Cost

1  Single Family Residential 54,736 ($268,316)

2 Tier 1 (0-7 hcf) 54,736 100% 54,736 ($268,316) ($4.90)

3 Tier 2 (7+ hcf) 33,067 0% 0 $0 $0.00

4 Non-Residential 86,437 100% 86,437 ($264,144) ($3.06)

5 Total 174,240 ($532,460)

REVENUE NEUTRAL RATES

Table 4-7 shows the revenue neutral commodity charges for all classes and tiers, based on
the Base unit cost from Table 3-19, the Capacity unit cost from Table 4-5, and the Revenue
Offset unit cost from Table 4-6. The revenue neutral rate represents the cost-of-service
analysis for FY 2026 but does not include any proposed revenue adjustments.

Table 4-7: Revenue Neutral Commodity Charges (per hcf)

Rev. Revenue
Offset  Neutral Rate

Line Customer Class Base Capacity

1 Single Family Residential

2 Tier 1 (0-7 hcf) 54,736  $6.17 $2.26  ($4.90) $3.53
3 Tier 2 (7+ hcf) 33,067  $6.17 $2.26  $0.00 $8.44
4  Non-Residential 86,437  $6.17 $2.26  ($3.06) $5.38

PROPOSED RATES WITH ADJUSTMENT

Table 4-8 shows the proposed commodity charges for FY 2026 compared to current charges.
Because the proposed revenue adjustment in FY 2026 is 0% (per Table 2-18), the proposed
FY 2026 charges simply equal the revenue neutral charges (from Table 4-7).

Water Resources Economics
50

Page 73 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Table 4-8: Proposed Commodity Charges after Adjustment (per hcf)

Proposed Current Difference  Difference

Rate %) (%)

Line Customer Class FY 2026
Rate

1  Single Family Residential

2 Tier 1 $3.53 $2.22 $1.31 59.0%
3 Tier 2 $8.44 $7.88 $0.56 7.1%
4 Current Tier 3/Proposed Tier 2 $8.44 $14.45 ($6.01) -41.6%
5 Non-Residential $5.38 $5.37 $0.01 0.2%

4.6 PROPOSED WATER RATE SCHEDULE
PROPOSED FIVE-YEAR REVENUE ADJUSTMENTS

Table 4-9 shows the proposed revenue adjustments for the five-year period and their
effective date based on the proposed financial plan (per Table 2-18).

Table 4-9: Proposed Revenue Adjustments

Line Fiscal Year Effective Date Revenue
Adjustments
1 FY 2026 January 2026 0.0%
2 | FY 2027 January 2027 3.0%
3 FY 2028 January 2028 3.0%
4 | FY 2029 January 2029 3.0%
5 FY 2030 January 2030 3.0%

PROPOSED FIVE-YEAR WATER RATE SCHEDULE

The proposed five-year water rate schedule is calculated by increasing the FY 2026
proposed charges (from Table 4-2, Table 4-4, and Table 4-8) by the proposed annual
revenue adjustments (from Table 4-9) and rounding up to the nearest cent. Table 4-10,
Table 4-11, and Table 4-12 show the proposed five-year monthly fixed service charges,
monthly fixed fire service charges, and commodity charges, respectively.

Table 4-10: Proposed Monthly Fixed Service Charges

Monthly Fixed Service Effective  Effective  Effective  Effective  Effective

Charge Jan. 2026 Jan. 2027 Jan. 2028 Jan. 2029 Jan. 2030
1  5/8-inch meter $37.17 $38.29 $39.44 $40.63 $41.85
2 | 3/4-inch meter $51.90 $53.46 $55.07 $56.73 $58.44
3 1-inch meter $81.36 $83.81 $86.33 $88.92 $91.59
4 1 1/2-inch meter $155.02 $159.68 $164.48 $169.42 $174.51
5  2-inch meter $243.40 $250.71 $258.24 $265.99 $273.97
6 | 3-inch meter $479.10 $493.48 $508.29 $523.54 $539.25
7  4-inch meter $744.26 $766.59 $789.59 $813.28 $837.68
8 | 6-inch meter $1,480.81 $1,525.24 $1,571.00 $1,618.13 $1,666.68
9  8-inch meter $2,364.67 $2,435.62 $2,508.69 $2,583.96 $2,661.48
10 | 10-inch meter $6,194.72 $6,380.57 | $6,571.99 $6,769.15 $6,972.23
11  Construction (3-inch meter) $479.10 $493.48 $508.29 $523.54 $539.25

Water Resources Economics
51

Page 74 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Table 4-11: Proposed Monthly Fixed Fire Service Charges

Monthly Fixed Fire Effective Effective Effective Effective Effective

Service Charge Jan. 2026 Jan. 2027 Jan.2028 Jan.2029 Jan. 2030

4-inch connection $117.58 $121.11 $124.75 $128.50 $132.36
2 | 6-inch connection $326.88 $336.69 $346.80 $357.21 $367.93
3  8-inch connection $687.87 $708.51 $729.77 $751.67 $774.23

Table 4-12: Proposed Commodity Charges (per hcf)

Effective Effective Effective Effective Effective
Jan. 2026 Jan. 2027 Jan. 2028 Jan. 2029 Jan. 2030

Commodity Charge

1 Single Family Residential

2 Tier 1 (0-7 hcf) $3.53 $3.64 $3.75 $3.87 $3.99
3 Tier 2 (7+ hcf) $8.44 $8.70 $8.97 $9.24 $9.52
4  Non-Residential $5.38 $5.55 $5.72 $5.90 $6.08

4.7 CUSTOMER IMPACTS
RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER IMPACTS

WRE evaluated the impacts to the Single Family Residential customer class, which
represents approximately 94% of the District’'s meter connections, based on the proposed
water rates for FY 2026. Table 4-13 shows the proposed impacts for a Single Family
Residential customer with a 5/8-inch meter (the most common meter size within this class,
representing over 95% of customers) at various levels of monthly usage. For the average
Single Family Residential customer that uses 8 hcf of water per month, the monthly bill
increase will be $9.37 or 15.4%, which reflects the impact of the cost-of-service analysis and
proposed rate structure changes.

Table 4-13: Proposed Residential Customer Impacts
Monthly

Residential Usage Current Proposed Difference Difference

Customer Impacts (hch) Bill Bill (%) (%)
1  10th Percentile 1 $39.75 $40.70 $0.95 2.4%
2 | 25th Percentile 3 $44.19 $47.76 $3.57 8.1%
3  50th Percentile 6 $50.85 $58.35 $7.50 14.7%
4 | Average 8 $60.95 $70.32 $9.37 15.4%
5  75th Percentile 12 $92.47 $104.08 $11.61 12.6%
6  90th Percentile 16 $137.13 $137.84 $0.71 0.5%

Water Resources Economics
52

Page 75 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Water Resources Economics
53

Page 76 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

5. APPENDICES

5.1 FINANCIAL PLAN APPENDICES

Line

Revenues (Detail)
Operating Revenue

Base Rate - Water Bills
Commaodity Sales

Fire Sales - Water Bills

Fees & Charges

Basic Facilities Fee

Stand by Fees - Tax Revenue
Subtotal

Non-Operating Revenue

Property Taxes

Cell Tower Lease

Interest Income - Investment Accounts
Interest Income - Water Bills

Subtotal

Total

FY 2026

$614,185
$933,141
$3,530
$73,000
$90,760
$124,200
$1,838,815

$128,800
$39,800
$67,600
$8,300
$244,500

$2,083,315

Table 5-1: Revenues (Detail)

FY 2027

$618,540
$937,315
$3,530
$73,000
$90,760
$126,684
$1,849,829

$131,376
$40,596
$82,105
$8,300
$262,377

$2,112,206

Water Resources Economics

54

FY 2028

$622,896
$941,490
$3,530
$73,000
$90,760
$129,218
$1,860,893

$134,004
$41,408
$85,694
$8,300
$269,406

$2,130,299

FY 2029

$627,251
$945,664
$3,530
$73,000
$90,760
$131,802
$1,872,007

$136,684
$42,236
$88,344
$8,300
$275,564

$2,147,571

FY 2030

$631,607
$949,839
$3,530
$73,000
$90,760
$134,438
$1,883,173

$139,417
$43,081
$89,410
$8,300
$280,208

$2,163,381

Page 77 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Table 5-2: Operating Expenses (Detail)

Line Operating Expenses (Detail) FY 2026 FY 2027 FY 2028 FY 2029 FY 2030
1  Payroll Expenses
2 | Directors Fees $20,000 $21,000 $22,050 $23,153 $24,310
3  Management & Customer Service $263,300 $276,465 $290,288 $304,803 $320,043
4 | Field Workers $250,300 $262,815 $275,956 $289,754 $304,241
5 Workers Comp. $17,000 $18,020 $19,101 $20,247 $21,462
6 Employee Health Care $77,300 $81,938 $86,854 $92,066 $97,589
7  Retiree Health Care $3,000 $3,180 $3,371 $3,573 $3,787
8 Pension $108,700 $115,222 $122,135 $129,463 $137,231
9 FICA and Medicare $40,800 $43,248 $45,843 $48,593 $51,509
10 SUland ETT $4,100 $4,346 $4,607 $4,883 $5,176
11 Medical Testing $1,400 $1,484 $1,573 $1,667 $1,767
12  EE Health Care In-Lieu Payments $3,000 $3,180 $3,371 $3,573 $3,787
13 | Subtotal $788,900 $830,898 $875,149 $921,775 $970,905
14
15 Facilities, Wells, Transmission & Distribution (T&D)
16 | Lab Fees $13,000 $13,520 $14,061 $14,623 $15,208
17 Meter Testing & Repair $1,000 $1,040 $1,082 $1,125 $1,170
18 | Utilities - Wells $225,000 $247,601 $272,472 $299,840 $329,957
19 | Line R&M Materials $45,000 $46,800 $48,672 $50,619 $52,644
20 | Chemicals $14,000 $14,703 $15,442 $16,217 $17,032
21  Well Maintenance - Other $20,000 $20,800 $21,632 $22,497 $23,397
22 | Security $18,700 $19,448 $20,226 $21,035 $21,876
23  Engineering Services $15,000 $15,600 $16,224 $16,873 $17,548
24 | Facilities, Wells, T&D - Other $25,000 $26,000 $27,040 $28,122 $29,246
25  Subtotal $376,700 $405,512 $436,849 $470,951 $508,078
26
27 Office Expenses
28 | Electricity $20,700 $22,770 $25,047 $27,552 $30,307
29 Gas $400 $416 $433 $450 $468
30 Telephone $5,400 $5,616 $5,841 $6,074 $6,317
31 Trash Pickup & Office Cleaning $10,000 $10,400 $10,816 $11,249 $11,699
32  Water Billing System $13,400 $13,936 $14,493 $15,073 $15,676
33  Supplies & Equipment $9,400 $9,776 $10,167 $10,574 $10,997

Water Resources Economics
55

Page 78 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Line
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68

Operating Expenses (Detail)
Copier & Supplies

Dues & Subscriptions
Postage

Printing & Publications
Computer Services

Air Conditioner Servicing
Office Expenses - Other
Subtotal

Support Services

Financial Audit

Accounting

Legal Services

Payroll/ Bank Service Charge
Website Support

Insurance

Subtotal

Other Operating Expenses
Training/ Travel

Other Fees/ SWRCB
Subtotal

Service Tools & Equipment
Shop Suppliers & Small Tools
Vehicle Fuel

Employee Uniforms

Safety

Tractor Expenses/ Maintenance

Equipment Rental

Service Trucks - Repair & Maintenance
Water Operations On-Call Phones

Subtotal

Non-Operating Expenses

FY 2026
$4,900
$2,000

$11,800
$500
$31,000
$5,500
$900
$115,900

$15,600
$55,400
$15,000
$7,500
$1,100
$54,300
$148,900

$4,000
$11,300
$15,300

$9,000
$12,500
$2,000
$2,000
$4,000
$4,000
$12,000
$4,500
$50,000

Water Resources Economics

56

FY 2027
$5,096
$2,080

$12,272
$520
$32,240
$5,720
$936
$121,778

$16,224
$57,616
$15,600
$7,800
$1,144
$59,730
$158,114

$4,160
$11,752
$15,912

$9,360
$13,750
$2,080
$2,080
$4,160
$4,160
$12,480
$4,680
$52,750

FY 2028
$5,300
$2,163

$12,763
$541
$33,530
$5,949
$973
$128,015

$16,873
$59,921
$16,224
$8,112
$1,190
$65,703
$168,022

$4,326
$12,222
$16,548

$9,734
$15,125
$2,163
$2,163
$4,326
$4,326
$12,979
$4,867
$55,685

FY 2029
$5,512
$2,250

$13,273
$562
$34,871
$6,187
$1,012
$134,639

$17,548
$62,317
$16,873
$8,436
$1,237
$72,273
$178,685

$4,499
$12,711
$17,210

$10,124
$16,638
$2,250
$2,250
$4,499
$4,499
$13,498
$5,062
$58,820

FY 2030
$5,732
$2,340

$13,804
$585
$36,266
$6,434
$1,053
$141,677

$18,250
$64,810
$17,548
$8,774
$1,287
$79,501
$190,169

$4,679
$13,219
$17,899

$10,529
$18,301
$2,340
$2,340
$4,679
$4,679
$14,038
$5,264
$62,171

Page 79 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

FY 2030

Line Operating Expenses (Detail)

FY 2026

FY 2027

FY 2028

FY 2029

69 DWR Loan Processing Fee $1,400 $1,400 $1,400 $1,400 $1,400
70 Bad Debt Expense $1,400 $0 $0 $0 $0
71  Miscellaneous $1,500 $1,560 $1,622 $1,687 $1,755
72 | Subtotal $4,300 $2,960 $3,022 $3,087 $3,155
73

74 | Total $1,500,000 $1,587,924 $1,683,292 $1,785,168 $1,894,053

Water Resources Economics

57

Page 80 of 98




Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

5.2 COST-OF-SERVICE ANALYSIS APPENDICES

Table 5-3: Operating Expenses by System Functions (Detail)

Treat- Distri- Revenue

Operating Expenses FY 2026 m Wells ment Storage bution Offset General Total
1 Payroll Expenses
2 Directors Fees $20,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
@ '\C"S;%?ﬁg;es“etri‘i - $263,300 0% 17% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 83% 100%
4 | Field Workers $250,300 0% 0% 0% 20% 20% 0% 40% 0% 20% 100%
5 Workers Comp. $17,000 0% 8% 0% 10% 10% 0% 19% 0% 53% 100%
6 Employee Health Care $77,300 0% 10% 0% 11% 11% 0% 23% 0% 45% 100%
7 Retiree Health Care $3,000 0% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 50% 100%
8  Pension $108,700 0% 9% 0% 11% 11% 0% 22% 0% 46% 100%
9  FICA and Medicare $40,800 0% 8% 0% 10% 10% 0% 19% 0% 54% 100%
10 | SUland ETT $4,100 0% 15% 0% 8% 8% 0% 17% 0% 52% 100%
11  Medical Testing $1,400 0% 8% 0% 10% 10% 0% 19% 0% 53% 100%
12 Egy';ee"’r‘::z Care In-Lieu $3,000 0% 8% 0% 10% 10% 0% 19% 0% 53% 100%
13  Subtotal $788,900
14
15 Facilities, Wells, Transmission & Distribution (T&D)
16 | Lab Fees $13,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
17 Meter Testing & Repair $1,000 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
18  Utilities - Wells $225,000 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
19  Line R&M Materials $45,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100%
20  Chemicals $14,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
21 \(’)"tﬁ'e'}:v'a'me"a“ce - $20,000 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
22 | Security $18,700 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
23 | Engineering Services $15,000 0% 0% 0% 30% 0% 30% 40% 0% 0% 100%
24 g?ﬁg'r"es’ Wells, T&D - $25,000 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
25  Subtotal $376,700
26
27 | Office Expenses
28 | Electricity $20,700 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
29  Gas $400 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
30  Telephone $5,400 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
gy, | EEID PHECTH & 02 $10,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%

Cleaning

Water Resources Economics
58

Page 81 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

. Treat- Distri- Revenue

Operating Expenses FY 2026 Wells ment Storage bution Offset General Total
32 | Water Billing System $13,400 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
33 Supplies & Equipment $9,400 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
34 | Copier & Supplies $4,900 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
35 | Dues & Subscriptions $2,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
36  Postage $11,800 0% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 50% 100%
37  Printing & Publications $500 0% 50% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 50% 100%
38 Computer Services $31,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
39 Air Conditioner Servicing $5,500 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
40 | Office Expenses - Other $900 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
41 Subtotal $115,900
42
43 | Support Services
44  Financial Audit $15,600 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
45  Accounting $55,400 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
46  Legal Services $15,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
47 E?;‘;"e/ Bl E2niee $7,500 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
48 | Website Support $1,100 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
49  Insurance $54,300 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
50  Subtotal $148,900
50l
52 | Other Operating Expenses
53  Training/ Travel $4,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
54  Other Fees/ SWRCB $11,300 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100%
55  Subtotal $15,300
56
57  Service Tools & Equipment
58 ?28@ Suppliers & Small $9,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100%
59  Vehicle Fuel $12,500 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100%
60  Employee Uniforms $2,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100%
61  Safety $2,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100%
62 H:iﬁt%rni’éggnsey $4,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100%
63  Equipment Rental $4,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100%
64 ze,\;‘gfnet;;ﬁ'éz -Repair 615 000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100%
CE \évslteljh%ﬁi;a"o”s ClE $4,500 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 0% 0% 100%
66  Subtotal $50,000 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
67

Water Resources Economics
59

Page 82 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Operating Expenses

FY 2026

Meters

WEIS

Treat-
ment

Storage

Distri-
bution

Revenue
Offset

General

Total

68 | Non-Operating Expenses

69 EZZR Ligiely) 2 fegesiilng $1,400 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
70 | Bad Debt Expense $1,400 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
71 Miscellaneous $1,500 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% 100%
72 | Subtotal $4,300

73

74  Total $15M  $1,000 $87,407 $0  $381,828 $104,328  $4,500 $255,656 $0  $665,280 $1.5M

Water Resources Economics

60

Page 83 of 98




Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Table 5-4: Capital Assets by System Functions (Detail)

Balance
06/30/2024

Capital Asset Asset

Cost Function

Asset Type Acq. Date CCI Adjustment

Description Number

1 Land CWC Acquisition = LAND LA-1 6/30/1984 $36,581 327% $119,742 Excluded

2 Land LAND LA-2 12/26/1969 $8,274 1069% $88,486 Excluded

3 Land LAND LA-3 12/31/1992 $20,000 272% $54,449 Excluded

4 Land - Water Impr LAND LA-4 6/30/1994 $14,154 251% $35,519 = Excluded

5 Land - Water Impr LAND LA-5 6/30/1994 $60,600 251% $152,075 Excluded

6 Land-TaiFuCost LAND LA-6 6/30/1995 $22,365 248% $55,478  Excluded

7 Land - Water Impr LAND LA-7 6/30/1995 $1,200 248% $2,977 Excluded

8 Land - Capital Imp LAND LA-8 6/30/1995 $4,000 248% $9,922 | Excluded

9 Land - Capital Imp LAND LA-9 6/30/1995 $11,000 248% $27,286 Excluded

10 \';\‘;";f' - BMT Concrete | \np LA-10 6/30/1996 $12,500 241% $30,185 Excluded

11 Jland Jensen LAND LA-11 2/5/1997 $18,687 233% $43,530 Excluded

12 Land - Elm St LAND LA-12 10/31/2004 $200,187 191% $381,841 Excluded

13 Land - DHPO LAND LA-13 5/15/2017 $280,000 126% $353,913 Excluded
Emercency generator | TOOLS &

14 Well 2 EQUIPMENT 6/7/2002 $35,665 208% $74,032  Wells

15 Ergo Jackhammer ISy 4/8/2002 $1,815 208% $3,767 = Distribution

EQUIPMENT ' '

John Deere 310 SG TOOLS & 0 T

16 Loader EQUIPMENT 6/20/2005 $80,536 182% $146,787 | Distribution
Backhoe ECU and TOOLS & .

17 | soah EQUIPMENT 9/30/2016 $3,243 131% $4,257  Distribution
Safety Harness (50' TOOLS & S

18 Jiood EQUIPMENT 9/30/2016 $2,060 131% $2,704  Distribution

19 ‘é\g‘i'i'”fyee“erator SOURCE OF SUPPLY  SS-1 5/15/2002 $38,588 208% $80,099 Wells

20 \é\gi'i'“fyee”erator SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-2 2/26/2003 $109,770 203% $222,546  Wells

21 Wells- Jensen SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-3 8/25/1997 $11,528 233% $26,854 Wells

22 | Water Source Plant | SOURCE OF SUPPLY | SS-4 8/25/1997 $16,805 233% $39,146 Wells

23 Structures - Jensen SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-5 8/25/1997 $1,962 233% $4,570 Wells

24 | Water Treatment SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-6 8/25/1997 $16,534 233% $38,515 Treatment

25 chrlfe" Res Cty Cont ' g5 URCE OF SUPPLY  SS-7 6/30/2002 $46,839 208% $97,226  Wells

26 | SCADA SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-8 2/28/2010 $127,203 154% $196,194 General

27  DHPO Interconnection SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-9 5/31/2012 $190,442 146% $277,669 Distribution

2g  DHPDINEICOMECIoN | souRCE OF SUPPLY | $S-10 7/1/2012 $108,405 146% $158,057  Distribution

29  Almond Vault SOURCE OF SUPPLY  SS-11 4/30/2013 $4,530 142% $6,440 Storage

30  Well Repairs SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-12 1/31/2013 $9,337 142% $13,273  Wells

Water Resources Economics
61

Page 84 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Balance
06/30/2024

Capital Asset Asset

e Asset Type Number Cost Function

CCI Adjustment

31 Infrastructure SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-13 12/31/2012 $158,234 146% $230,709 Wells
32 Well Repairs SOURCE OF SUPPLY | SS-14 4/15/2012 $108,936 146% $158,831 @ Wells
33 Well Repairs SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-15 8/1/2011 $1,502 150% $2,247  Wells
34 DHPO 2014 SOURCE OF SUPPLY | SS-16 11/30/2013 $101,961 142% $144,940 @ Distribution
35 DHPO 2014 SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-17 11/30/2013 $148,010 142% $210,400 Distribution
Adder for Concrete
36 Block security wall, SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-18 1/6/2014 $19,595 138% $27,119  Wells
steel security door
37 Well Repairs 2014 SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-19 1/1/2015 $74,721 135% $101,052 Wells
ag  ylels 4> Pump SOURCE OF SUPPLY = $5-20 12/1/2014 $90,617 138% $125412  Wells
Well #5 - built
retaining wall for
39 disharggd well water SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-21 3/15/2015 $3,600 135% $4,869 Wells
atD
(2) Grundfos DDA 7 5-
40 16 pump (chlorinators = SOURCE OF SUPPLY | SS-22 10/31/2014 $4,038 138% $5,589 @ Wells
for wells)
(1) Octave meter with
41 pulse module, (2) bolt = SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-23 11/1/2014 $11,402 138% $15,780 Wells
and nut kit w
Octave Meter with
42 Pulse Module - Well SOURCE OF SUPPLY | SS-24 12/15/2014 $5,025 138% $6,954 @ Wells
#5 per Calvin Bra
11/11/2014 valve built
43 in shop - 8" full port SOURCE OF SUPPLY | SS-25 2/28/2015 $5,395 135% $7,296 Wells
check valve an
11/21/14 valve built in
44 shop. Deep well pump | SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-26 2/28/2015 $4,563 135% $6,171  Wells
control valv
Well #5 - install
controls for waste
45 valve and rewire SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-27 5/31/2015 $6,092 135% $8,239 Wells
panels
Well #5 Telemetery
46 Implementation (install = SOURCE OF SUPPLY | SS-28 5/31/2015 $14,130 135% $19,109 @ Wells
SCADA at Wel
47 DHPO SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-29 7/1/2015 $8,087 135% $10,937 Distribution
ag | LimondVaulContiol ' souRcE OF SUPPLY | $5-30 7/1/2015 $18,257 135% $24,691 Storage
49 Almond Vault-PRV SOURCE OF SUPPLY | SS-31 7/1/2015 $38,963 135% $52,693 Storage

Water Resources Economics

62

Page 85 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Capital Asset Asset Balance . .
Descrintion Asset Type Number 06/30/2024 CCI Adjustment Cost Function
Almond Vault-

50 Submersible liberty SOURCE OF SUPPLY | SS-32 7/1/2015 $5,651 135% $7,642 @ Storage
287 pump

51 Well 2 Motor Repair  SOURCE OF SUPPLY  SS-33 2/28/2017 $15,370 126% $10.427 Wells

52 ‘é\’rgglfer 500 AMP SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-34 3/14/2017 $6,594 126% $8,335  Wells
Well 5 Upgrades-

53 Discharge, Softstarter, SOURCE OF SUPPLY  SS-35 12/5/2017 $19,538 126% $24,696 Wells
Remote Keypad

54  Well5-Backup Motor SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-36 8/31/2019 $1,425 120% $1,714  Wells

55  Well 2 Totalizer SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-37 5/31/2021 $2.781 112% $3.111  Wells

56 Well 1 Rehab SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-38 41112022 $543,103 104% $566,672 Wells

57 Tank 1 Recoating SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-39 9/30/2021 $276,596 112% $309,385 Storage
Well 2 - Control Panel

58 Renlacemont SOURCE OF SUPPLY | SS-40 8/31/2021 $17,033 112% $19,052  Wells

59 gﬁﬁ;ﬂﬂaﬁ‘;“p - SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-41 9/30/2021 $2,590 112% $2,897 Treatment

60 '[;‘éif:g ;’ j‘r'T‘]’SS(Ig; SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-42 12/31/2021 $1,209 112% $1,352  Treatment

61 Chlorinators (2) SOURCE OF SUPPLY @ SS-43 5/31/2022 $7,692 104% $8,026 Treatment

62  Well 1 Pump Rehab | SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-44 8/30/2023 $143,601 102% $145,893  Wells

63  Well4Pump Rehab  SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-45 10/31/2023 $152,068 102% $154,496 Wells

64 :é'cgzﬁfgm SOURCE OF SUPPLY = SS-46 12/31/2023 $475,062 102% $482,646 Storage

65  Pipeline B?SA}'\I‘QSI'BSL‘JTI oN TD-1 12/16/1991 $19,350 281% $54,313  Distribution

) TRANS & o

66 Krieger & Stewart DISTRIBUTION TD-2 3/18/1992 $3,824 272% $10,411  Distribution

67  Millard Canyon W E?SA}'\SB%TI oN TD-3 6/30/1996 $5,194,307 241% $12,543,327 Distribution

68  Gravity System B?é}'\fm%ﬂ oN TD-4 12/8/1997 $1,546 233% $3,601  Distribution

69  Gravity System S oN TD-5 12/22/1997 $1,546 233% $3,601 Distribution

70 Pumping Equip - JE B?é}'\fm%ﬂ oN TD-6 8/25/1997 $22,017 233% $51,287  Distribution

71 Reservoirs & Tanks E?SA}'\I'QSIB%TI oN TD-7 8/25/1997 $148,155 233% $345,118 Storage

72 Water Mains - Jens EII:QS'O'\I"\IIQSIB%JTI ON TD-8 8/25/1997 $84,917 233% $197,809 | Distribution

TRANS &
73 Meters Jensen DISTRIBUTION TD-10 8/25/1997 $19,608 233% $45,676 Meters

Water Resources Economics

63

Page 86 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Capital Asset Asset Balance . .
Descrintion Asset Type Number 06/30/2024 CCI Adjustment Cost Function
74 Other Equip Jens B@T'\;{SIB%TI oN TD-12 8/25/1997 $5,493 233% $12,796  Distribution
75 Adjustments to C e oN TD-13 8/25/1997 $55,245 233% $128,600 Distribution
76 Seminole Pipeline E?Q'\;{SIB%H oN TD-14 1/28/1998 $254,280 229% $582,924  Distribution
77 Jensen Engineering E?Q’;SIBSL‘JTI oN TD-15 8/25/1997 $19,468 233% $45.349  Distribution
78 Seminole Pipeline E‘SAT'\F'{SIB%TI on TD-16 1/1/1999 $45,720 224% $102,406  Distribution
79 Jensen / Southeast E?SA}I\ILSIBSLLJTI ON TD-17 1/1/1999 $650,416 224% $1,456,840 Distribution
80  Irrigation Pipeline B?Sél’l\ll?SIBglLJTl oN TD-18 6/29/2000 $11,933 218% $26,032  Distribution
o TRANS & o
81 Pipeline 2 DISTRIBUTION TD-19 10/15/1999 $5,200 224% $11,647 Distribution
82  Pipes3" S oN TD-21 11/20/2000 $9,776 218% $21,327  Distribution
TRANS & o
83  CwcC L o TD-22 6/30/1984 $134,999 327% $441,899 Distribution
84  Apache Vault E?SA\TI\IiESIBglfJTI oN TD-23 9/14/2001 $5,040 214% $10,783 | Distribution
85  Almond Vault S oN TD-24 9/21/2001 $3,585 214% $7,670 Distribution
Southeast Inter TRANS & o o
86 poeling TS ON TD-25 10/22/2001 $23,398 214% $50,062  Distribution
Jensen 1.0 MG TRANS &
g7 Jonsen D ON TD-26 3/7/2002 $18,521 208% $38,445 Storage
88 gt Main Line - Helen BTSAT’\FIaSlBngTl ON TD-27 10/7/2002 $23,797 208% $49,397 | Distribution
8" Hot Tap Ext TRANS & . o
89 | Bt D oN TD-28 9/12/2002 $4,197 208% $8,712  Distribution
90 Butterfly Valves (2) -IglquAT'\liQSIBglfJTI ON TD-29 11/16/1999 $1,046 224% $2,343 | Distribution
91  FA Projects S oN TD-30 12/31/2003 $41,551 203% $84,240  Distribution
92  SE 1713 Pipeline E?S"\T'\;{SIB%TI oN TD-31 7/31/2005 $318,420 182% $580,362  Distribution
93 Desert Hills Pipeline -IE—)II?SA'\I'I\IIQSIBSLLJTI oN TD-32 6/30/2006 $349,381 175% $611,735 Distribution
Electrical panel for TRANS &
o0 e T ON TD-33 6/18/2007 $19,272 170% $32,833  Wells

Water Resources Economics

64

Page 87 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Capital Asset Asset Balance . .
Descrintion Asset Type Number 06/30/2024 CCI Adjustment Cost Function

95  Distribution b TD-34 8/31/2007 $632 170% $1,077 Distribution

96  Apache and Bonita ﬁsﬁ'\;fmgbﬂ on TD-35 2/1/2010 $40,265 154% $62,103  Distribution
Altitude Valve for TRANS & 9

97 Jenson Well DISTRIBUTION TD-36 3/25/2010 $8,234 154% $12,700 Wells

98 Coat Seminole Tank B@T'\;{SIB%TI oN TD-37 5/31/2013 $29,800 142% $42,361 Storage

. TRANS &

99 Hypochloride DISTRIBUTION TD-38 6/1/2011 $2,066 150% $3,091 Treatment

100 Ida Refurbishment S oN TD-39 12/15/2011 $17,340 150% $25,046  Distribution

101  SCADA E@T'\SIB%TI oN TD-40 11/15/2013 $106,354 142% $151,185 General
Service Order: 814- TRANS &

102 14: August 21, 2014: DISTRIBUTION TD-41 8/31/2014 $3,841 138% $5,316 @ Storage
Tank 2 control pa
Elm St. Tank #3 (.5 TRANS &

103 million gallon) interior DISTRIBUTION TD-42 6/1/2015 $39,600 135% $53,5655 Storage
recoating - only
14944 Broadway TRANS & o

104 Meter Replacement DISTRIBUTION TD-43 8/10/2015 $2,400 135% $3,246 Meters

105 | gooo->00s0Main o TRANSE N TD-44 11/23/2015 $43,520 135% $58,856 Distribution
14966 Broadway TRANS & o

106 Meter Replacement DISTRIBUTION TD-45 8/19/2015 $2,400 135% $3,246  Meters
15140 Plum St Meter TRANS & 9

107 Replacement DISTRIBUTION TD-46 8/20/2015 $1,800 135% $2,434 Meters
15136 Plum St Meter TRANS &

108 Replacement DISTRIBUTION TD-47 8/20/2015 $1,800 135% $2,434  Meters
15268 & 15256 Plum TRANS & 9

109 St Meter Replacement ~ DISTRIBUTION TD-48 8/20/2015 $2,400 135% $3,246 Meters
48804 Mojave St TRANS & ) 0

110 Meter Replacement DISTRIBUTION TD-49 11/5/2015 $2,400 135% $3,246  Meters
49894 Fuller Meter TRANS &

111 Install DISTRIBUTION TD-50 5/5/2016 $6,100 131% $8,008 Meters
51955 Esperanza TRANS & o

112 Meter Install DISTRIBUTION TD-51 8/20/2015 $6,000 135% $8,114 Meters
52200 Esperanza TRANS & : 9

113 Meter Replacement DISTRIBUTION TD-52 11/3/2015 $4,200 135% $5,680 Meters
52273 Esperanza TRANS &

114 Meter Replacement DISTRIBUTION TD-53 11/3/2015 $4,200 135% $5,680 Meters

Water Resources Economics

65

Page 88 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Capital Asset Asset Balance . .
Descrintion Asset Type Number 06/30/2024 CCI Adjustment Cost Function
50910 Seminole TRANS & 3

115 Hydrant Replacement  DISTRIBUTION TD-54 2/2/2016 $8,705 131% $11,428 Meters
14011 Broadway TRANS &

116 Meter Replacement DISTRIBUTION TD-55 6/20/2016 $11,230 131% $14,742 = Meters
15118 EIm New TRANS & 0

117 Service DISTRIBUTION TD-56 9/11/2015 $3,600 135% $4,869 Meters
49295 & 49309 TRANS &

118 Blanche Meter DISTRIBUTION TD-57 6/6/2016 $4,980 131% $6,538 | Meters
Replacement
52208 Lois Meter TRANS & 9

119 Replacement DISTRIBUTION TD-58 8/20/2015 $1,698 135% $2,296 Meters
52209 Lois Meter TRANS & 0

120 Replacement DISTRIBUTION TD-59 8/20/2015 $1,698 135% $2,296 | Meters

121 DHPO System E?SA}'\#SIB%TI oN TD-60 5/15/2017 $2,320,000 126% $2,932,422  Distribution
Meter Replacements TRANS &

122 2018 DISTRIBUTION TD-61 5/16/2018 $4,203 123% $5,156 @ Meters
Service Line Sleeve TRANS & 5 L

123 (Deluca) DISTRIBUTION TD-62 1/18/2018 $9,789 123% $12,010 Distribution
Dollar General TRANS &

124 Pipelines & DISTRIBUTION TD-63 3/1/2018 $25,142 123% $30,845  Distribution
Appurtenances
Hydrant Upgrades TRANS & :

125 and Hydrant Security DISTRIBUTION TD-64 6/8/2018 $3,739 123% $4,587 Meters
Dollar General TRANS &

126 Pipelines & DISTRIBUTION TD-63 6/30/2018 $97,052 123% $119,067 @ Distribution
Appurtenances
Meter Replacements TRANS &

127 2019 DISTRIBUTION TD-65 5/31/2019 $3,200 120% $3,850 Meters
Meter Replacements TRANS &

128 2020 DISTRIBUTION TD-66 2/29/2020 $4,114 118% $4,870 @ Meters

129 Hydrant Replacement E?SA}'\#SIB%TI oN TD-67 5/31/2020 $2,640 118% $3,125 Meters
8" Main Line Extention | TRANS & S

130 Hattie Lane DISTRIBUTION TD-68 5/31/2020 $5,600 118% $6,628 | Distribution
SCADA Software TRANS &

131 Upgrade DISTRIBUTION TD-69 6/30/2020 $10,123 118% $11,982 General
Mapping Updates TRANS & . o

132 2020 DISTRIBUTION TD-70 6/30/2020 $36,784 118% $43,539 = General
Hydrant Replacement = TRANS & . 5

133 2021 DISTRIBUTION TD-71 6/30/2021 $4,746 112% $5,309 Meters

Water Resources Economics
66

Page 89 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Balance
06/30/2024

Asset
Number

Capital Asset

ok Cost Function
Description

Asset Type

CCI Adjustment

Meter Replacements | TRANS & o

134 oo DISTRIBUTION TD-72 6/30/2022 $5,952 104% $6,210 Meters
Esperanza Mainline TRANS & 7 U

135 | EoPETENZ DISTRIBUTION TD-73 11/30/2021 $9,318 112% $10,423  Distribution
10" Bell Joint TRANS & . o

136 peplacement DISTRIBUTION TD-74 8/31/2021 $7,038 112% $7,872  Distribution
Meter & Valve TRANS & 3

137 | Replacements2023 | DISTRIBUTION TD-75 6/30/2023 $28,027 102% $28,474 Meters

138 Isolation Valves S oN TD-76 6/30/2023 $1,171,405 102% $1,190,105 = Distribution
Broadway & Main TRANS & U

139 DISTRIBUTION TD-77 6/30/2023 $74,282 102% $75,468  Distribution
Meter Replacements TRANS & o

140 | oo DISTRIBUTION TD-78 3/31/2024 $5,806 100% $5,806 Meters

141 Storage Unit SR DIES & BS-1 2/2/1997 $3,100 233% $7,242 General
Mobile Storage BUILDINGS &

142 Lo STRUCTURES BS-2 10/3/2007 $2,688 170% $4,579 General

143 Gate SULDINGS & BS-3 2/24/2014 $2,500 138% $3,460 General
Conference Room BUILDINGS &

144 50wty STRUCTURES BS-4 1/21/2014 $2,325 138% $3,218 General
Flag Pole @ 14618 BUILDINGS &

15 | o ey STRUCTURES BD-5 6/23/2016 $1,659 131% $2,178 General
Main Street Storage BUILDINGS & ) o

146 | v2rd improvements | STRUCTURES BD-6 4/30/2022 $170,688 104% $178,095 General

147 %:ﬁ(”“e Distribution  \\ ATER TREATMENT = WT-1 4/13/2015 $8,800 135% $11,901 Storage
Software upgrade - OFFICE FURN &

148 |\ tor Biling EQUIPMENT OF-1 4/30/2005 $24,710 182% $45,037 = Customer

149 2 toughbooks (EDSE'I‘;EAE‘@N & OF-2 5/15/2010 $9,559 154% $14,744 General

150 Fireproof filing cabinet (EDSE“%EAEE?N & OF-3 11/3/2009 $2,082 158% $3,297 | General
four fireproof filing OFFICE FURN &

151 | o0 EOUIEREND OF-4 7/6/2009 $3,525 158% $5,582 General
Radios - FCC OFFICE FURN & .

152 ponee EQUIPMENT OF-5 2/15/2014 $2,379 138% $3,292 General

153 Credenza ggﬁ'ﬁi;ﬁ?“ & OF-6 3/5/2014 $1,389 138% $1,922 General

154 Roof Ladder (E)(S'L:JIIIEII%/IELI\JﬁN & OF-7 1/1/2015 $2,000 135% $2,705 | General

Water Resources Economics
67

Page 90 of 98



Cabazon Water District 2025 Water Rate Study

Balance
06/30/2024

Capital Asset Asset

B Asset Type Number Cost Function

Acq. Date

CCI Adjustment

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

162
163
164

165
166

167

168

169
170
171

New Computers

Board Room Projector

Board Room 2
network cameras and
cabling (record meet
Intrusion Security
System (14935 1/2
Almond St.)

Polycom Conference
Phone

Wireless Projector
System and Cabling

Security Light System

Johnson Controls
Supervisory Controller
Intangible Plant
Jensen Legal re:
water Rights

Roll covers- two
Tundra Service Truck
2016 Ford Fiesta
Meter Reading Car
LED Spotlights on
Service Trucks

2022 Ford Truck
2005 GMC Truck
Total

OFFICE FURN &
EQUIPMENT
OFFICE FURN &
EQUIPMENT

OFFICE FURN &
EQUIPMENT

OFFICE FURN &
EQUIPMENT

OFFICE FURN &
EQUIPMENT
OFFICE FURN &
EQUIPMENT
OFFICE FURN &
EQUIPMENT
OFFICE FURN &
EQUIPMENT
INTANGIBLES

INTANGIBLES

VEHICLES
VEHICLES

VEHICLES

VEHICLES

VEHICLES
VEHICLES

OF-8

OF-9

OF-10

OF-11

OF-12

OF-13

OF-14

OF-15
IN-1
IN-2

VE-4
VE-5

VE-6

VE-7

VE-8
VE-9

3/1/2015

7/1/2015

7/1/2015

8/31/2016

7/31/2016

8/31/2016

1/31/2021

10/31/2020
8/25/1997
8/25/1997

8/31/2012
4/24/2010

9/30/2016

10/31/2018

3/22/2022
6/1/2023

Water Resources Economics

68

$8,932

$4,804

$3,808

$4,408

$2,866
$1,346
$5,675

$20,399
$7,277
$3,755

$5,385
$29,404

$15,852

$8,419

$76,707
$9,000

135%

135%

135%

131%

131%

131%

112%

118%
233%
233%

146%
154%

131%

123%

104%
102%

$12,080

$6,497

$5,150

$5,787

$3,762
$1,767
$6,348

$24,145
$16,951
$8,747

$7,851
$45,352

$20,810

$10,329

$80,036
$9,144
$28,791,010

General

General

General

General

General

General

General

General
General
General

General
Distribution

Distribution

Distribution

Distribution
Distribution

Page 91 of 98



This page intentionally left blank

Page 92 of 98



Cabazon Water District
September 16, 2025 Regular Board Meeting

New Business

2.Discussion/Action ltem:
[TAB 2]

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) 5-
Year Periodic Update for the San Gorgonio Pass
Groundwater Sustainability Agency

Attachments:
1. 5-Year Periodic Evaluation Cost Share Split

Business (951) 849-4442 e FAX (951) 849-2519
Page 93 of 98



Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) 5-Year Periodic Update for

the San Gorgonio Pass Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Provost & Pritchard/INTERA Proposal

Total Proposal Cost - P&P/INTERA $337,527
Task 1 - GSP Update S 72,807
Task 2 - Model Update S 222,204
Task 3 -Project Management S 42,516
Balance of Project to Participates: S 337,527

COST SHARING BY AGENCY

Agency

Total Cost Share

TOTAL PROPOSAL  Total (%)

1 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency S 112,509 S 112,509 33.3%
2 City of Banning S 45,004 S 45,004 13.3%
3 Banning Heights MWC S 45,004 S 45,004 13.3%
4 Cabazon Water District S 45,004 S 45,004 13.3%
5 Mission Springs Water District S 45,004 S 45,004 13.3%
6 Desert Water Agency S 45,004 S 45,004 13.3%
(o}

S 337,527 S 337,527 100%

Actual Cost

Under Budget S (337,527)

SGPWA 5-Year Periodic Update Cost Share

$45,004 , 13%

$45,004 , 13%

$45,004 , 13%

$45,004 , 13%

$112,509 , 34%

$45,004 , 14%

B San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency
m City of Banning
M Banning Heights MWC
Cabazon Water District
m Mission Springs Water District

M Desert Water Agency

Page 94 of 98



Cabazon Water District
September 16, 2025 Regular Board Meeting

Updates

CWD Operations Report:
[TAB 3]

Attachments:
1. Monthly Operations Report

Business (951) 849-4442 e FAX (951) 849-2519
Page 95 of 98



14-618 Broadway Street « P.O. Box 297
Cabazon, California 92230

September 16, 2025
CWD Board Meeting
Operations Update

e On August 27, 2025, | attended the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency Groundwater Sustainability Plan
Meeting. The core objectives is to:

e Ensure Long Term Availability by balancing groundwater use with recharge rates to support
communities

e Prevent Overdraft to avoid chronic lowering of groundwater levels that can lead to dry wells and reduce
water availability

e Sustainability Goals — Usually 20 years / Monitoring Plans include tools and metrics to track progress
and adjustments as required

e Provost and Pritchard is the consulting firm completing the 5 year periodic evaluation which is a
regulatory requirement under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act which balances levels of
pumping levels and recharge.

e The total cost of the proposal is $337,527 with the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency cost share is
$112,500.

e Cabazon Water District cost share is $45,004. Fees will be invoiced monthly as they are accrued. The
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), enacted in 2014, requires Groundwater
Sustainability Agencies (GSASs) to prepare and implement Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) or
Alternative Plans to ensure long-term sustainable groundwater use in California. As part of this
framework, GSAs are required to submit a Periodic Evaluation every five years, assessing progress
toward sustainability goals, updating data and models, and addressing any Recommended Corrective
Actions (RCAs) identified by the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) during its initial
review of the GSP Submittal to DWR is due on or by July 1, 2026.

e Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group will perform the services in this project on a time and materials
basis, in accordance with our Standard Fee Schedule in effect at the time services are rendered. These
fees will be invoiced monthly as they are accrued.

e SGPWA will contract directly with Provost & Pritchard and will bill the participating GSA member
agencies for their respective cost share. SGPWA has planned and included this expenditure in their
FY25-26 approved budget under the General Fund budget.

¢ DRC Engineering Inc notified me on August 29, of a Desert Hills Premium Outlet expansion project of
43,000 square feet of new retail stores in the vicinity of the escalators and the Starbucks kiosk on
Premium Outlet Drive

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

Page 96 of 98



o Brett Rocine (Director of Acquisitions) of Towerpoint — Open Records Request asking for a copy of the
District’s current telecommunication lease contract, and documents or any financial document showing
the exact current monthly and annual rent being collected.

e The Well 2 New Building has been completed on August 25, 2025.

i W

Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

Page 97 of 98



I have received 3 quotes for the additional concrete for the dual driveway approach, with square footage
to cover the reaming front of the building, The project is an item for 1700 square feet.
Masonry & Concrete Design Inc $29,756.00
Grand American Builders $32,500
OC Concrete $37,237.50
Business (951) 849-4442 « FAX (951) 849-2519

Page 98 of 98



	FAC Agenda
	Financials

	Regular Agenda
	Consent Calendar
	TAB 1 - Rate Study
	TAB 2 - SGMA SGP GSA
	TAB 3 - GM Report




